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To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Board of Trustees and Taxpayers of the Village
of Rockville Centre, New York:

Submitted herewith is the comprehensive annual financial report of the Village of Rockville
Centre, New York ("Village") as of and for the year ended May 31, 2015. The Comptroller's
department is pleased to announce that for the twelfth consecutive year, this report was
prepared in compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34
- Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and
Local Governments.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the
Village. Therefore, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the Village has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to both protect the
government's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the Village's financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the Village's comprehensive framework of internal controls has
been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, this comprehensive annual financial report is complete
and reliable in. all material respects.

The Village's financial statements have been audited by R.S. Abrams & Co., LLP, a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Village for the fiscal year ended
May 31, 2015 are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Village's financial statements for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2015, are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting -
principles. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report. To gain an enhanced overview of the financial activities of
the Village, it is recommended that you read the Management, Discussion and Analysis
that precedes the basic financial statements.
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Profile of the Village of Rockville Centre, New York

The Village of Rockville Centre, incorporated under the New York State Village law in 1893,
is a residential community located on the south shore of Long Island, five miles east of the
New York City limits and twenty-one miles by rail from Pennsylvania Station in Manhattan.
Its population of 24,023 (2010 Census) makes it one of the larger villages in the State
encompassing an area of approximately 3.3 square miles. Commuting facilities include
hourly train service provided by the Long Island Railroad. All railroad grade crossings have
been eliminated and in the station there is an escalator and an elevator for the
handicapped to access the elevated platform. A network of bus lines offers public
transportation to the New York City subways in Jamaica and to Hempstead, Freeport, Long
Beach and to nearly all other Nassau County communities. There is bus service within the
Village as well as a taxi service.

Rockville Centre enjoys all modern public services, such as the municipally owned and
operated electric generating plant and distribution system. In addition, the Village operates
water pumping treatment and storage facilities along with its own distribution system. A
sanitary sewer system was installed over 50 years ago. Collection sewers which are
maintained by the Village, empty into the County’s sewage disposal system. The Village
has its own Police Department with a total of 54 uniformed personnel and all vehicles
containing state of the art computer equipment. The Fire Department, with 342 volunteers,
has up-to-date fire fighting equipment. The Recreation Department is a special part of the
Village life. Oriented toward a community with a broad range of interests, programs are
offered in sports, creative expression and cultural activities. The Village has its own Senior
Center which offers socialization, transportation, classes and health screening to the
Village's increasing senior population. One full-time and one part-time social worker give
aid and counseling to senior citizens.

There are three senior citizen developments in the Village providing 309 living units. One of
these developments, the Halandia Senior Citizen Housing Complex, built under the Federal
Section 8 Housing Assistance program, was the last parcel of land in the Rockville Centre
Urban Renewal Project. This Complex contains 165 apartments. The development costs
were approximately $6.5 million. It contains several community rooms, two elevators,
‘spacious private grounds and has an active tenant’s organization. Additionally, there is a
nursing home and a health related facility.

The Phillips House Museum, which receives some funding from the Village, is staffed by
volunteers. There are changing exhibits, classes and special programs including an annual
spring tour of Village homes and trips to nearby historic sites. The Guild for the Arts
presents programs featuring renowned musical artists, summer concerts in the park,
theatre, poetry readings, juried art and photography shows, museum tours and an annual
Artfest. Molloy College, middle and senior public high schools, five grade schools, a full
service public library and a Roman Catholic grade school constitute the education facilities.
Churches of most denominations and two synagogues are located in the Village. The
Diocesan Headquarters of the Diocese of Rockville Centre, which embraces all of the
Counties of Nassau and Suffolk, is located in the Village. Mercy Hospital, with a bed
capacity of 387, an 18 bed cancer care unit for the terminally ill, plus emergency and
outpatient facilities, services the Village and adjacent communities. There are six
professional medical centers located in the Village.
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Rockville Centre has long been known for its banking facilities. Branches of many of the
larger commercial banks in the country and branches of a variety of the large metropolitan
savings banks are located in the central business district of the Village. A diversified retail
business section attracts shoppers from surrounding communities as well as the Village.
Twenty-seven municipal parking fields, strategically located, accommodate shoppers and
commuters and aid in traffic control by providing thousands of off-street parking spaces.

Several areas of the Village are zoned for light industry. During recent years, the Village
has seen an increase in the growth of office space provided to doctors, lawyers, CPA's,
computer firms and commerce by new and renovated buildings. Rockville Centre's
business district is located 15 minutes from Kennedy Airport and 35 minutes by train from
Mid-town Manhattan.

The governing body of the Village is the Board of Trustees, which consists of the Mayor
and four Trustees, all of whom are elected for four-year terms. There are two Village
Justices who are the only other elected officials and who serve four-year terms. Elections
are held every two years in odd number years. The Village Administrator/Clerk-Treasurer,
Village Attorney, Tax Assessor, Comptroller and other department heads are appointed by
the Mayor with consent of the Board of Trustees.

The Budget Officer is the Comptroller of the Village. The Budget Officer sends budget
request forms to the various departments and the approximate timetable for budget
development is as follows:

January 7 Comptroller's pro forma budget workpapers to all Department Heads.
January 21 All Department Heads return estimates to Comptroller.
March 20 Tentative budget filed with Village Clerk by this date

March 20-March 30 Meetings with bankers and civic groups.
Notice of Public Hearing published.

April 15 Public Hearing on budget by this date.
May 1 Adoption of budget and salary scale, and setting of tax rate by this .
date.

The Board of Trustees has not formally adopted a capital program. Section 99-g of the
General Municipal Law calls for a six-year program; such program is permissive, not
mandatory. However, the Village has developed a five-year plan of capital projects, in order
to establish priorities and determine projected impact on the tax rate of the Village.

The United States Census Bureau's "Census 2010" reports the Village has a Per Capita
income of $53,417, which compares favorably to the national average of $27,334. Median
household income totaled $104,023, more than double the national average of $51,914. In
excess of 57% of the population aged 25 years and over has earned either a Bachelor's
Degree or higher, the state average is below 33%.



Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is
considered in light of the specific environment in which the Village operates.

Local Economy

On January 29, 2015, Standard and Poor’s Rating Services upgraded their credit rating for
the Village to AAA, their highest rating category. In their credit rating report, they praised
the Village for its very strong budgetary flexibility, financial management and liquidity.
Moody’s Investors Service continues to assign a very strong credit rating of Aa2 to the
Village. They continue to praise the Village for its strong financial management and low
debt burden.

Full valuation of taxable real estate was approximately $3.9 billion during fiscal 2015,
having declined 6% in six years. Median home prices are approximately $600,000 and
certain homeowners continue to spend significant sums on building improvements.
Numerous business owners have also invested considerable amounts of money on
improving their properties.

Homeowners and businesses continue to benefit from the Village's relatively low electric
and water rates. In comparison to electric rates in many surrounding communities, Village
electric rates can be as much as 40% lower. This significant savings helps produce the
extremely low vacancy rate in the central business district, as it helps attract new
commercial establishments into the Village when infrequent vacancies become available.

Long-term Financial Planning

During fiscal 2016, the very extensive Maple Avenue resurfacing, drainage and lighting
improvements project will finally be completed. Grant monies are expected to cover
approximately 20% of the final project cost.

Senior management expects to finalize labor negotiations with the Police Benevolent
Association whose most recent contract lapsed on December 31, 2011. Negotiations to
establish an initial collective bargaining agreement with the newly established supervisors
bargaining unit will also likely be finalized. Negotiations will likely commence with the
CSEA Clerical Unit whose contract will expire on May 31, 2016.

The Water Department will complete an anticipated $2,850,000 renovation of the water
tank located adjacent to Southside High School. Additional water related infrastructure
improvements, primarily involving the replacement of water mains, will also continue.

CO catalysts will be installed on two additional electric generation units. The completion of
these installations will ultimately enable the Village to operate four older electric generation
units without any significant time restrictions.



Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village for its comprehensive
annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2014. This was the
nineteenth consecutive year that the Village received this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an efficiently organized
CAFR satisfying both generally accepted accounting principles and legal requirements that
meets or exceeds reporting standards established by the GFOA.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire Comptroller's Department staff. | also want to thank the
Mayor and Board of Trustees for their support. | also wish to extend a very special thank
you to our independent auditors, R.S. Abrams & Co., LLP for their invaluable assistance.
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(1926~2014)

' {‘q“ R's‘ AB RAMS & CO" LLP Marianne E. Van Duyne, CPA

8 ccountants & Consultants for Quer 75 years ‘ Alexandria M. Battaglia, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
The Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, fiduciary funds and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Incorporated Village of
Rockville Centre as of and for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents. '

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fait presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. ’

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abotit the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions. '

ISLANDIA: 3033 EXPRESS DRIVE NORTH, SUITE 100 « ISLANDIA, NY 11749
WHITE PLAINS: 50 MAIN STREET, SUITE 1000 « WHITE PLAINS, NY 10606
PHONE: (631) 234-4444 + FAX: (631) 234-4234

www.rsabrams.com
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, fiduciary funds and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre as of May 31, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required ' Supplementary Information

" Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, and schedule of funding progress on pages 1 through 13 and 56 through 58,
respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquires, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the

- Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre 's basic financial statements. The other supplementary financial information as
listed in the table of contents is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements.

The information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 30, 2015 on our
consideration of the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
“of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant -agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

RA - Qreme s Co e
R.S. Abrams & Co., LLP
Islandia, NY
October 30, 2015
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Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New York
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
May 31, 2015

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis of the Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre, New
York’s financial statements provides an overview of the financial activities of the Village for the
fiscal year ended May 31, 2015. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the
transmittal letter, located at the front of this report, the basic financial statements and the
accompanying notes to those statements that follow this section.

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2015

® The General Fund completed fiscal year 2015 with a fund balance totaling $6,552,342. Of
this amount, unassigned fund balance totaled $3,041,776 while another $1,713,394 was
assigned and $1,797,172 was restricted for unused sick and terminal leave payments,
primarily for retiring police oﬁicers.

e The Electric Fund had an increase in net position of $682,755 and the Water Fund had an
increase in net position of $329,227.

¢ The Village's total outstanding bonds payable at May 31, 2015 was $53,090,000. Of this
total, $30,125,000 and $22,965,000 were attributable to the Village’s governmental and
business-type activities, respectively.

¢ The Capital Projects Fund fund balance was $11,179,018 consisting of restricted fund
balance totaling $10,150,620 and assigned fund balance of $1,028,398.

Total net position (assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources) for fiscal year 2015 was $31,095,027. Of this amount a deficit of
$11,130,953 represents governmental net position and $42,225,980 represents business-type net
position. The governmental activities net position decreased by $319,055 for the fiscal year
ended May 31, 2015. This was primarily due to the recognition of additional other post
employment benefit (“OPEB™) obligations as required under the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“*GASB”) Statement No. 45. The GASB is charged with
developing the accounting guidelines that apply to governments. These OPEB obligations
include any benefits provided to retirees, other than a pension, including health insurance, life
insurance, vision, dental, etc. GASB Statement No. 45 establishes standards for accrual based
measurement and recognition of OPEB expenses over periods that approximate employees’
years of active service, as well as the required note disclosures. For the fiscal year ending May
31, 2015, the Village’s net OPEB obligations were $30,093,524 of which $26,052,971 is
recorded as a liability in governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements,
and accordingly is the prime factor in the negative value of net position in governmental

11



activities. For the business-type net position, the Eleciric Fund and Water Fund net position
totals were $24,547,089 and $17,678,891, respectively.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Village's financial statements are comprised of this MD&A and the basic financial
statements. The MD&A provides an analysis and overview of the Village's financial activities.
The basic financial statements include three components: government-wide financial statements;
fund financial statements; and notes to financial statements. This report also includes other
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are presented in a manner similar to private-sector
business financial statements. The statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide financial
statements include two statements: Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities.
Fiduciary activities, whose resources are not available to finance Village programs, are excluded
from these statements. '

The Statement of Net Position presents the Village’s total assets and deferred outflows of
resources, as well as total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources with the difference
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in the net position may serve as a
gauge to determine whether the financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing the change in the Village's net position
during the current fiscal year. All revenues and expenses are reported in this statement regardless
of the timing of cash flows. The focus of this statement is on the net cost of providing various
activities to the citizens of the Village.

Both of the above financial statements have separate sections for the two different types of
activities. These two types of activities are:

Governmental activities - The activities reflected in this section are general government support,
public safety, health, transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and
recreation, home and community services and interest. These activities are mostly supported by
taxes, charges for services and operating grants and contributions.

Business-type activities - These activities consist of the Village's two enterprise funds: water and
electric. These activities are intended to recover their cost of operation, including depreciation,
primarily through user charges.

The government-wide financial statements can be found immediately following this discussion
and analysis.

12



Fund Financial Statements

A fund is an accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances/net
position, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The Village divides its funds
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds - Most of the basic services provided by the Village are financed and
accounted for through governmental funds. Governmental fund financial statements focus on
current inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as the available balances of these
resources at the end of the fiscal year. This information is useful in determining the Village's
financing requirements for the subsequent fiscal period. Governmental funds use the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting with the
exception of the Section 8 Fund where the accrual basis of accounting is utilized. -

Because the focus of governmental funds is for the much narrower current period, it is useful to
compare this information to the data presented in the government-wide financial statements in
order to better understand the long-term impact of the Village's current financing decisions. Both
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village has six individual governmental funds: General, Capital Projects, Community
Development, Section 8 Housing, Special Purpose and Debt Service funds. Of these, the General
and Capital Projects funds are reported as major funds and are presented in separate columns on
the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances. Data for the other governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated column on these statements. Individual fund data for these non-major
funds can be found on the combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Village adopts an annual budget for its General and Debt Service funds. Budgetary
comparison statements have been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance with the
respective budgets.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements
section of this report.

Proprietary funds - The Village maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise
Junds and internal service funds. These funds are used to show activities that operate similar to
private business enterprises and charge fees for services provided. Proprietary fund financial
statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,
like the government-wide financial statements.
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Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The Village uses enterprise funds to account for its Water and
Electric activities. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the Village's various functions. Within the Internal Service fund,
the Village accounts for its activities related to workers' compensation benefits, general liability
claims and unemployment claims.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements section
of this report.

Fiduciary funds - These funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside of the Village. The fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the assets of these funds are not available to support the activities of the
Village.

The Fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in the basic financial statements section of
this report. '

Notes to Financial Statements
The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes can be found following the basic financial statements section of this report.

Other Information
Additional statements and schedules can be found immediately following the notes to financial
statements. These include the combining statements for the non-major governmental funds and
proprietary funds and schedules of budget to actual comparisons.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's

financial position. In the case of the Village, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $31,095,027 for fiscal 2015.
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The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Position:

May 31, 2014 May 31,2015
<" Governmental Business-type Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Current Assets .$23,814,676 518265308  $42,079.984 $26924519 320601395  $475259M
Capital Assets, Net 36,377,013 53953322 90,330,335 42915332 59,051,351 101,966,683

Total Assets 60,191,689 72218630 132410319 69,839911 79,652,746 149492657
Deferred Outflows of _

Resources 437468 318,546 756014 364,557 281,711 646,268
Current Liabiities 5344627 4,554,113 9,895,740 5,094,085 7,056,687 12,150,772
Non-current Liabilities 66,013,433 26,772,065 92,785,498 76,118,548 30,651,790 106,770,338

Total Liabiliiles 71,358,060 31323178 102681238 81,212,633 37708477  118921,110
Deferred Inflows of '

Resources 82,995 82995 122,788 122,788
Net Position:

Net investment in capital

assets 20,330,836 34,143,448 54474284 22233324 35,702.976 57,936,300

Restricted 1,633,122 _ 1,633,122 2,880,387 2,880,387

Unrestricted (Deficit) (32,775,356) 7070350  (25,705,306) (36,245,164) 6,523,004  (29,722,160)

Total Net Position (Deficit) ($10.811,898)  $41213998  $30402,000  ($11,30953)  $42225980  $31095027

The largest component of the Village's net position reflects its net investment in capital assets
amounting to $57,936,300. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens
and, consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Village's net
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be utilized to liquidate these liabilities.
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Restricted net position of $2,880,887 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The restrictions are for the following purposes:

May 31,
2014 2015

Capital projects $298,870 $480,610
Employee benefit

accrued Ilabdllty 733,023 1,797,172
Debt Service 181,309 280,812
Section 8 housing 284,462 131,104
Special purpose -

culture and recreation

and public safety 135,458 191,189

Unrestricted net position (deficit) totaled ($29,722,160). This amount is comprised of
Governmental Activities net position (deficit) totaling ($36,245,164) and business-type activities
net position totaling $6,523,004. The deficit in governmental activities net position is primarily
due to (1) compensated absences of approximately $15.5 million, and (2) other post employment
benefit obligations recorded in accordance with GASB Statement No. 45 of approximately $26.0
million, with no offsetting assets,
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The following table reflects the changes in net position from operating results:

Program Revenues:
Chasges for Services:
Operating Grants and

Contributions
Cnpital Grants and
Contributions

General Revenues:
Real Property Taxes
Non Property Taxes
Unrestricted Use of

Money and Property
State and Federal Aid
Miscellaneous

Toial Revenues

Program Expenses:
General Government and Admin.
Public Safety
Health
Transportation
Economic Opportunity and

Development
Culture and Receeation
Home and Community

Services
Interest
Water Fund
Electric Fund

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning of Year

Neit Position « End of Year

May 31, 2014 May 31,2015
Governmental Business-type Governmental Business-type
Activities  ____ Activitics Tatal Activities Activitics Total
§12970990 $32,552012 $45,523,002 $12,786.408 530,050,716 $42.837,124
3,300,654 3300654 3,669,389 3,669,389
1,143,138 1,143,138 1,434,560 1434 560
26,128,571 26,129,571 27312754 27312,754
811969 811969 906,877 906,877
99,526 85,530 185056 82,143 101,026 183,169
812714 812,711 761,799 761,799
884,690 884.690 963,717 963717
$46.153249 $326371542 $78.790.791 47917647 30.151.742. 78069389
3213879 821387 8316220 8316220
20949,004 20,949,004 21,259,003 21,259,003
143,514 143514 56,349 56,349
5497651 5497651 5286,167 5313654
3022159 302,159 2,803,056 2,803,056
5199944 5,199941 4,888,405 4,905,129
5229599 5226599 4,940,809 4968 809
661,191 661,191 686,693 686,693
5129614 5129614 4,827,391 4827391
2647523 26347523 24312369 24312369
48916938 31477,137 80394075 48236.702 29,139,760 71448673
(2,763,689) 1,160,405 (1,603,284) (319,055) 1011982 692927
(8048209) 40.053.593 32005384 (10.811.898) 41213998 30.402,100
§(10,811,898) § 41,213,998 § 30,402,100 § (31,130,9583) § 42,225980 § 31,095,027
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Governmental activities. As discussed previously, governmental activities resulted in a
$319,055 reduction in the Village’s net position during the current fiscal year. This resulted in an
erosion of the Village’s financial condition. Governmental activities reflected a net deficit of
($11,130,953) based on total revenues of $47,917,647 and total expenses of $48,236,702.

Property taxes ($27.3 million) and charges for services ($13.0 million) represented the largest
revenue sources. Property taxes grew 4.5% due to a real estate tax rate increase of 4.44%.
Collection of the current tax levy remains very strong at nearly 100%. Operating grants for
general government and administration increased by $368,735 due primarily to additional FEMA
reimbursements in the current year,

Public Safety expenses totaled $21.3 million and represented 44% of total expenses. Culture and
Recreation expenses totaled $4.9 million and reflected the Village's continuing commitment to
its parks and recreation programs. Transportation expenditures totaled $5.3 million, a decrease of
$.2 million from the prior year. Additional post-employment benefits obligations of $3,869,537
were a significant reason for the decline in net position.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities reflected a net position totaling $42,225,980
of which the Water and Electric Funds totals were $17,678,891 and $24,547,089, respectively.
Electric Fund metered sales totaled $24,798,043, a decrease from $27,133,374 in fiscal 2014.
This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in consumption offset by an increase in electric
~ rates. Metered sales in the Water Fund decreased from $4,621,079 in fiscal 2014 to $4,440,216

in fiscal 2015. Purchased power for the Electric Fund decreased from $12,215,145 in fiscal 2014
to $11,476,806 in fiscal 2015, due to the above decrease in customer utilization. Taxes decreased
by approximately $400,000 and employee benefits for the Electric Fund decreased by
approximately $617,000 from fiscal 2014, primarily due to decreases in retirement expense,
compensated absences and medical and dental insurance costs which include other
postemployment benefits. These decreases in expenses helped improve the net position of the
fund.

Financial Analysis of the Village's Funds

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village's governmental funds is to provide information
on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful
in assessing the Village's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may
serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year. '

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village’s governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $18,335,729, an increase of $3,314,527 from the prior year. Of the total
combined fund balance, $3,041,776 constitutes unassigned fund balance in the General Fund,
$1,713,394 constitutes assigned fund balance in the General fund, $1,028,398 constitutes
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assigned fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund, and $12,550,897 constitutes aggregate
restricted fund balance in all governmental funds.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Viliage. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the total fund balance of the General Fund was $6,552,342 compared to $5,148,195 at May 31,
2014. None of the May 31, 2015 fund balance was appropriated towards the next fiscal year
budget. $3,510,566 of the General Fund fund balance is either assigned or restricted and
therefore is not available for discretionary spending. The assigned fund balance is comprised of
$1,399,956 for future real estate tax refunds and $313,438 to liquidate contracts and purchase
orders.

General Fund revenues and other financing sources aggregated $43,642,633 in fiscal 2015, an
increase of $1,544,865 from fiscal year 2014. Real property taxes totaled $27,312,754, an
increase of $1,183,183 or 4.53% from fiscal year 2014 due to a 4.44% real estate tax increase
and represented the single largest revenue source at 62.58% of total General Fund revenues.
Parks and recreation charges totaled $1,883,202, an increase of $11,721 from fiscal year 2014.
Building and alteration permits increased by $173,237, from $1,145,896 in fiscal year 2014 to
$1,319,133 in fiscal year 2015, primarily due to a new construction project at Molloy College.
Parking permit revenues increased from $1,176,506 in fiscal 2014 to $1,207,414 in fiscal 2015
due to higher permit sales. Interfund revenues generated from charges to the Water and Electric
funds decreased by $498,049, to a total of $4,829,783, primarily as a result of decreases to
reimbursements for wages and benefit expenditures.

Once again, public safety represented the largest expenditure category totaling $12,435,766, a
$67,584 increase from fiscal year 2014. Employee benefits decreased from $11,101,839 in fiscal
year 2014 to $10,712,215 in fiscal year 2015. Expenditures related to the New York State
Employees and Police Retirement Systems decreased from $4,312,642 in fiscal 2014 to
$3,915,882 in fiscal year 2015. Health insurance related expenditures increased from $4,444,683
in fiscal year 2014 to $4,602,527 in fiscal year 2015. General government support expenditures
aggregated $6,079,330, an increase of $734,650 from fiscal year 2014, Lastly, transfers for debt
service increased by $669,384 from $2,963,046 during fiscal year 2014 to $3,632,430 during
fiscal 2015.

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for capital project activity throughout the Village,
exclusive of activity in the Water and Electric Enterprise funds. The fund balance totaled
$11,179,018, an increase of $1,908,480 from fiscal year 2014. Expenditures totaled $8,383,778
in fiscal year 2015, a $4,919,259 increase from fiscal year 2014. Capital projects during fiscal
20135 included road improvements, the renovation of Village buildings and athletic fields and the
acquisition of two dump trucks, a passenger bus for the senior center and computer hardware.

Non-major Governmental Funds consists of Special Revenue Funds and the Debt Service Fund.
The Special Revenue Funds are made up of the following individual funds: Community
Development, Section 8 Housing and Special Purpose. For fiscal year 2015, the combined fund
balance of the non-major Governmental Funds totaled $604,369 as compared to $602,469 at
May 31, 2014. The Special Purpose Fund portion of the fund balance totaled $191,189 and
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consisted of a reserve for trusts to be utilized for recreational and police purposes. The Section 8
Housing Fund had a restricted fund balance of $131,104.

The Debt Service Fund had a total fund balance at May 31, 2015 of $280,812 all of which was
restricted for future debt service purposes. At May 31, 2014, the Debt Service Fund had a total
fund balance of $181,309. Debt service expenditures for fiscal year 2015 totaled $3,662,208, an
increase of $599,162 from fiscal year 2014.

Proprietary funds. The Village's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Net position totaled $42,225,980 at the end of fiscal year 2015 compared to $41,213,998 at May
31, 2014. Other factors concerning the finances of the Enterprise Fund have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Village's business-type activities.

There is no net position reported in the Village’s Internal Service Fund. It has been the Village’s
practice to have the General and Enterprise funds transfer the necessary amounts to meet all
projected general liability, unemployment and worker’s compensation expenditures on an annual
basis.

Budgetary Highlights

The Village adopts annual operating budgets for its General and Debt Service funds and reports
the results of operations on a budgetary comparison basis. The Village also used budget
estimates as a management tool for its enterprise and internal service funds, although the Village
does not report the results of these funds on a budgetary comparison basis. The Capital Projects
Fund is budgeted on a project basis.

In preparing its budget, the Village attempts to estimate its revenues and expenditures using
realistic, but conservative methods so as to budget its operations in a prudent manner. As a
result, the Board of Trustees adopts budget adjustments during the course of the fiscal year to
reflect both changed priorities and availability of additional revenues to allow for expansion of
existing or creation of new programs.

The final amended General Fund budget reflected a $1,811,917 increase in appropriations from
the original budget. The increase is largely attributable to the larger than anticipated expenditures
in general government support. The revenue budget increased $1,552,800, primarily due to
unanticipated state and federal aid.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets. The Village's capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as

of May 31, 2015 amount to $101,966,683 (net of accumulated depreciation). These capital assets
include land, buildings and equipment, infrastructure and construction-in-progress.
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Capital Asseils

(Net of Depreciation)
(in thousands)
May 31, 2014 May 31, 2015
Governmental Business-type Governmental  Business-type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

Land 84,576 $376 $4,952 $4,576 8376 $4,952
Equipment 17,772 47,858 65,630 18,879 49,581 68,460
Infrastructure 9,684 9,684 8,279 8,279
Construction-in-Progress 4,345 5,719 10,064 11,181 9,094 20,275
Total $36,377 $53,953 $90,330 $42,915 $59,051 $101,966

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in Note 8 in the notes to
financial statements.

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village had total debt outstanding of
$53,090,000 compared to $43,725,000 at May 31, 2014, The Village's total long-term debt
increased by $9,365,000 from the prior fiscal year. All of this debt is backed by the full faith and
credit of the Village. During fiscal year 2015 the Vlllage issued $14,460,000 of new general
obligation bonds.

Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds
(in thousands)

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015
General Obligation
Bonds $24,260 $30,125 $19,465 $22,965 $43,725 $53,090

Through sound financial management, effective budgetary controls and manageable debt levels,
the Village has been successful in receiving its high-grade ratings for its general obligation
bonds. The Village enjoys bond ratings of AA2 from Moody's Investors Service and AA+ from
Standard and Poor's. These ratings place the Village in the upper tier of rated Villages on Long
Island.

The New York State Constitution limits the amount of indebtedness, both long-term and short-
term, which the Village may incur. The State Constitution provides that the Village may not
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contract indebtedness in an amount greater than seven percent of the average full value of
taxable real property in the Village for the most recent five years. Certain indebtedness is
excluded in determining the Village's authority to contract indebtedness within the constitutional
limits; accordingly, debt of this kind, commonly referred to as "excluded debt", may be issued
without regard to the constitutional limits and without affecting the Village's authority to issue
debt subject to the limit. At May 31, 2015, the Village had a constitutional debt limit in excess of
$302 million. Total debt for both governmental and business-type activities is well below this
amount.

Additional information on the Village's long-term debt can be found in Note 11 in the notes to
financial statements.

Economic Factors and Fiscal Year 2016 Budget

The Village continues to enjoy both strong economic and fiscal health. "The 2010 ‘Census”
reported median household and per capita incomes at $104,023 and $53,417, which are 87% and
73% above the New York State averages respectively. 5.2% of the population is living below the
poverty level, 63% below the New York State average.

The fiscal 2016 budget contained a 2.83% real estate tax rate increase. During the last twenty
years, annual real estate tax increases have averaged approximately 5.0%. During this same time
frame, annual real estate tax collections have averaged 99.9%.

The following revenue sources are expected to experience budget growth in 2016: payments in
lieu of taxes from $500,700 to $526,008, street parking fees from $1,200,000 to $1,280,000, park
and recreation fees from $1,875,000 to $2,000,000 and building permits from $1,000,000 to
$1,100,000. Birth and death certificates are expected to generate approximately $67,000 for
2016.

Fines and forfeited bail and transfers from the Electric and Water funds are anticipated to decline
a combined $511,910 during fiscal 2016.

The fiscal 2016 budget assumes a 1.2% increase in expenditures. Police Department
appropriations have decreased by approximately $330,000. Retirement Systems expenditures are
anticipated to decrease by $130,000 as lower employer contribution rates will be assessed by
both the New York State Employees and Police/Fire Retirement Systems. Street
maintenance/snow removal and refuse appropriations have increased by $92,000 and $57,000,
~ respectively.

The schedule below provides the budget growth in funding premiums from the New York State
Retirement Systems during the last twelve fiscal years.
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Adopted General Fund Budget for Retirement Systems
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$ 1,702,000} S 1,675,000| S 1,720,000 S 1,670,000 | $ 1,595,000 | $ 1,582,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$ 2,213,000 $ 2,692,000 $ 3,566,512 |$ 4,117,926 | $ 4,080,000 | $3,950,000

The total debt service budget for fiscal year 2016 is $4,074,743 compared to $3,668,255 during
fiscal year 2015.

Health insurance related expenditures continue to grow. The schedule below reveals the budget
growth in this category during the last twelve fiscal years.

Adopted General Fund Budget for Health Insurance

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
$2,720,000 | $2,910,000 | $3,210,000 | $3,250,000 | $3,475,000 | $3,616,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
$3,852,000 | $4,322,770 | $4,537,000 | $4,690,674 | $4,653,000 | $4,862,000

The health insurance budget has increased 79% between fiscal year 2005 and fiscal year 2016.
The fiscal year 2016 budget for health insurance is $4,862,000, an increase of $209,000 from
fiscal year 2015. Short term health insurance premium increases are expected to continue at the
same pace as in recent fiscal years. However, there is some concern that long term premium
increases may experience more significant growth in response to federal health care reform.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village's finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to Michael Schussheim, Comptroller, Village of
Rockville Centre, PO Box 950, Rockville Centre, NY 11571-0950, telephone (516) 678-9228 or
visit the Village's web site at www.rveny.us.
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVYILLE CENTRE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASSETS
Cash ond cash equivalents - vrrestricied
Cash and cash equivalents - restricied
‘Taxes receivable, net of sllowance
for uncollectible amounts
Other receivables:
Accounts, nel
State and federal aid
Due from other governments
Due from fiduciary fund
intemal balances
Propaid expenses
Inventories
Capital ussets (net of sccumuloled depreeiation):
Land

Construction-in-progress
Buildings and equipment
Infrastructure

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES .
Deferved charge on refunding

LIABILITIES
Poyablcs
Accounts payable
Accrued linbilities
Accyucd interest poyable
Due to other governments
Due to retirement systems
Customer deposits
Uneamed revenues
Collections in sdvance
Noncusrent linbililies
Dug within onc year
Bonds payoble, inclusive of premiums
Claims payable
Compensated absences
Due in more than one ycar
Bonds payoble, inclusive of premiums
Cloims paypble
Compensaled absences

Net other post-employment benefits obligations

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOVYS OF RESOURCES
Taxes received in advance

NET POSTTION

Net investment in capital asscls

Restricted for:
Capital projecis
Employee benefit sccrued Fability
Debt service
Section B Housing
Specinl purpose

Unrestricted (deficit}
‘TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

See Accompanying Notes 10 the Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF NET FOSITION
MAY 31,2015

Primary Government
Governmental Business«Type
Activilies Activitics Totat
s 12,048325 S 12,631283 § 24,679,608
12,764,926 12,764,926
37,864 37,864
162,252 5,170,612 5332,824
1,094,739 1,094,739
428,004 428,004
124470 124,470
10.580 (10,579 1.00
253,459 253459
2,840,307 2,840,307
4,576,378 375,885 4,952,263
11,180,669 9,094,536 20,275,203
- 18879410 49,580,930 68,460,340
8278.875 8,278.875
69,839.911 79.682.974 149,522,888
364,557 281711 646.268
1,807,042 4,976,087 6,783,129
1,784,735 102,573 1887308
258,564 251,817 510,38)
1,803 1,803
1,080,389 166,549 1,246,938
1,476,256 1,476,256
161,552 113,632 275,184
3,457,951 2,697,114 6,155,065
1,769,502 1,769,502
388,462 74,529 462,991
27,438,624 20,932,972 48,371,596
1,861,039 1,861,039
15,149,999 2,906,623 18,056,622
26.052.971 4,040,553 30.093.524
81212.633 37,738,704 118,951,337
122,788 122,788
22,333,324 35,702,976 57,936,300
480,610 480,610
1,797,172 1,197,172
280812 280,812
131,104 131,104
191,189 191,189
(36.245,164) 6.523.004 (29.722.160)
3 {11,130983) $ 42225980 8 31.005.027




THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2015

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Position
Primary Gavernment

Charpes for  Operating Capltal Goveramental Business-Type
Expenses Services Grants Granly Activitles Activities Total
FUNCTIONS / PROGRAMS
Governmental Aclivities .
General government ond administrotion $ B316220 § 5308143 § 932,7M H (2,075,303) $  (2,075303)
Public safery 21,259,003 3,792,973 3,500 (17,462,530} (17.462,530)
Health 56,349 69,230 12,881 §3,B81
Transponation 5,286,167 $ 969,660 {4,316,507) {4,316,507)
Economic opportunity and development 2,803,056 112,485 241731 (273,260) {273,260}
Culture and recreation 4,888,405 1,928,304 167,883 464,900 {2,327,318) (2.327.318)
Home & community services 4,940,809 1,575,273 47921 {3.212,615) (3,217,615)
Intcrest 686,693 {686.693) (686,693)
Total Governmental Activitles 48,236,702 12,786,408 3,669,389 1414560 (30,346,345) S - {30.346.345)
Business-Type Activities
Water fund 4,827,391 5,099,967 272,576 AN 56
Eleciric fund 24,312,369 24,950,749 638.380 638380
Total Business-Type Activitles 29,139.760 __ 30,050,716 - - - 910,956 910.956
‘Total Primary Government § 77376462 $42.83%124 S 3.669.389  § 1.434.560 (30,346,345) 910,956 (29.435,389)
GENERAL REVENUES
Property 1axes, levied for gencrol purpose 27,312,754 27,312,754
Nonepropenty taxes . 906,877 906,877
Use of money & propenty B2,143 $01,026 183,169
State aid (unrestricied) 71,719 761,199
Miscellancous 963.717 963,717
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 30,027,290 101,026 30,128,316
CUANGE IN NET POSITION (319,055) 1,011,982 692,927
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR (10.811.898) 41,213,998 30,402,100
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $  {11.130953) § Aw s_:_wgo_zv_

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

MAY 31,2015
Capital Nen-Majar Totsl
General Projeclts Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricied § 7801608 § B31,667 $ 36611 S 8,669,886
Cash and cash cquivalents - restricted 1,797,572 10,150,620 817,134 12,764,926
Taxes receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts 37,864 37,864
Other receivables:
Accounts, net 5,161 655 19,146 24,962
State and federal aid ’ 104,935 980,804 1,094,739
Due from other governments 67,157 334,268 26,579 428,004
Due from other funds v 223.645 12,788 236,433
TOTAL ASSETS § 10,037,542 $ 12307014 § 912258 § 23,256,814
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Payables
Accounts payable $§ 547411 S L116903 8§ 4,121 § 1,668435
Accrued linbilitics 1,542,162 : 242,573 1,784,735
Due 1o other governments 1,803 1,803
Duc to relirement systems 1,080,389 1,080,389
Due to other funds 29,095 11,093 61,195 101,383
Unecamed revenues
Collections in advance 161,552 161,552
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3.362.4)2 1,127,996 307,889 4,798,297
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes received in advance - 122,788 122,788
FUND BALANCES
Restricted 1,797,172 480,610 603,105 2,880,887
Restricted (unspent proceeds) 9,670,610 ‘ 2,670,010
Assigned (community development}) 1,264 1,264
Assigned (lox certiorari) 1,399,956 1,399,956
Assigned (unappropriated) 313,438 1,028,398 1,341,836
Unassigned 3,041,776 3,041,776
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 6,552,342 11,179,018 604,369 18.335.729

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES $ 10,037,542 S 12307014 § 012258 S 23,256,814

Sce Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
RECONCILIATION OF GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
MAY 31,2015

Total Governmental Fund Balances S 18335729
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Pasition arc different because:

‘The cost of building and acquiring capital assets (Jand, buildings, equipment) financed
from the governmenta) funds are reported as expenditures in the year they are incurred,
and the assets do not appear on the balance sheet. However, the Statement of Net Position
include those capital assets among the assets of the Village as a whole, and their original
costs are expensed annually over their useful lives.

Original cost of capital assets $ 75,349,758
Accumulated depreciation {32,434,426) 42,915,332

The internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain activities,
such as insurance, to individual funds. Total assets of the intemal service fund less
current liabilities, reported on the Sistement of Net Position. 3,630,541

Govemnmental funds report the effect of gain on defeasance when debt is first issued as a
revenue, whereas these amounts arc deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activilies. . 364,557

Interest payable applicable ta the Village's govermmental activities are not due and
peyable in the current period and accordingly are not reported in the funds.
However, these liabilities are included in the Staiement of Net Position. (258,564)

Premium on bond refunding and serial bonds, The Statement of Activities
will amortize the premium on bond refunding and serial bonds over the life of the bonds.
. Governmental funds recorded the premiums as a revenue in the year of issue.

(771,575)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reporied in the funds:
Compensaled ahsences §$(15,538,461)
Claims poyable (3,630,541)
Bonds payable _ (30,125,000)
Net other post-employment benefits obligation (26.052,971) (75.346.973)
Total Net Position (deficit) s U 1,130,953)

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Real praperty toxes
Other tox items
Departmental income
Use of money & propeny
Licenses & permiits
Fines & forfeitures
Sale of proparty & compensation for loss
Intergovernmental charges
State aid
Federal ajd
Miscellancous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXTENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opponunily and development
Cullure and recreation
Home and community scrvices
Employee benchits
Debt service:
Principat
Interest
Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)

OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

' FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)

Premium on obligations
Issuance of serial bonds
Operating transfers in
Cperating transfers {out)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

Capital Non-Major Total
General Projects Governmental Goveramental

Fund Fund Funds Funds
£ 27,312,754 § 27,312,754
906,877 906,877
4,675,783 S 120,985 4,796,768
92,705 34,738 127,443
1,736,837 1,736,837
1,308,490 1,308,490
104,280 104,280
4,829,783 4,829,783
933,182 s 969,660 1,902,842
828,494 3,565,232 3,393,726
913,448 464.900 119,499 1,497,847
43,642.633 1.434.560 2,840.454 47,912,647
6,079,330 6,079,330
12,435,766 12,435,766
53,176 83,176
2,708,131 2,708,13¢
93,512 2,683,636 2,776,168
3,139,511 63,768 3,203,339
3,281,524 156,540 3,438,064
10,712,218 10,712,215
2,895,000 2,895,000
1,811 767,208 769,019
8,383,778 8,383,778
38,504,056 8,383,778 6,566,152 53.453.986
5,138,577 (6949218) _ (3.725.698) __ (5.536339)
90,866 90,866
8,760,000 8,760,000
102,000 3,636,732 3,738,732
(3.734.430) (4,302) {37383
(3,734.430) 8,857,698 3,727,598 8,850,866
1,404,147 1,908,480 1,900 3,314,527
5,148,195 9,270,538 602469 15021202
S 6552342 § ILI70018 S 604369 S 18335739

Sec Accompanying Notes (o the Financial Statements

28



TUHE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2015

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 3314527
Long-Term Revenue and Expense DifTerences

In the Statement of Activities, compensated absences (vacation and sick days)

are measured by the amounts carned or incurred during the yeas, In the governmenial

funds, expenditurcs for these items ase measurcd by the amount of finaneial

resources used. Compensated absences from May 31, 2014 10 May 31, 2015 changed by. (428,824)

Net other past cmploymemt berefits obligation in the Statement of Activities is measured by the

amounts earned or incurred during the year, In the governmentat funds

expenditures (or these ilems are measured by the amount of financia) resources used.

Net other post employment benefits payable from May 34, 2034 ta May 31, 2015 chanped by: (3,869,537)

Cepita! Reloted Differcnces
Capita! outinys o purchase or build capital pssets are reponied in governmental funds
as expenditures. However, for gavemmental activities, those cosls are capitalized
and shown in the Statement of Net Position and allocated aver their useful lives as
annual depreciation cxpense in the Siatement of Activities,

Capitol outlays S 8,383,778
Capital nsses ndditions 623,672

Depreciation expense (2.370.144) 6,637,336

The net cffeet of the relirement of cerlain generat capital assets before being fully deprecinted
is 1o decrense net position, {99,001

Long-Term Debt Differences
Repoyment of bond principal is an cxpcndllurc in the povernmental funds, but it
teduces long-term liobilities in the Statement of Net Position and does oot affect
the Statement of Activities 2,895,000

Issuance of bonds ks a sousce of revenue in the governmental funds, bul it increases
long-term linbilitics in the Statement of Net Position and decs not affect the Statement of Activities. {8,750,000)

Governmentul funds t:jmn the premiums, discounts and similar items on the refunded debl
when the debt is first issucd. These amounts are deferred and amontized in the Statement
aof Activities. Amortization far the fiscal year ended May 31, 2015 was 93,545

Deferred charges are omortized in the Stoiement of Net Position over the life
of the bond. Govenmenial funds secorded the charges ns expenditures in the I
yeor reccived Amonrtization for the fiscal year ended was: (72911}

Bond premiums received relating to sceinl bonds are revenues in the year of 1ssue in the
govemmental funds. In the Statement of Activities, the premium is amentized over the life of the bonds, (90,866)

tnterest on long-term debt in the Statement of Activities differs from the amounts

seported in the governmental funds because interest is secorded os an expendilure in

the funds when ot is due, and this sequires the use of current financial resources.

In the Statements of Activitics, interest expense is recognized as the interest

acerues repardless of when it is due. Accrued interest from May 31, 2014 10

May 31, 2015 changed by: 61,692

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $§  (319.05%)

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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THE INCORPORATE

STATEMENT OF FUND
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Accounts, net

Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Land
Construction-in-progress
Buildings and equipment

Less - Accomuinted depreciation
Total Non-Current Asscts
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on telunding

LIABILITIES
Payables

Accounts payable

Accrued Jiabilities

Accrued interest

Due to other funds

Customer deposits

Due to retirement system

Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums

Clalms payable

Compensated absences

Uncarned revenuc

Collections in advance

Toltal Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums

Chaims payable

Compensated absences

Net other post-emplayment benefits obligations
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

D VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NET POSITION - PROPR] ETARY FUNDS

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Slatements
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MAY 31,2015
Business-Type Activities- Governmental
—Enterprise Funds Activitles -
Internal Service
Water Electric Totals Fund
- 8§ 3865398 § 3,765885 § 12631283 § 3,378,439
1,844,507 3,326,105 5,170,612 137,250
16,728 24,542 41,270
: 253,459
289,707 2,550,600 2,840,307
6,016,340 14,667,132 20,683,472 3,769,148
327,271 48,614 375,885
4,482,303 4,612,233 9,094,536
32,384,715 59,882,137 92,266,852
37,194,289 64,542,984 101,737,273
(10,708,134} (31,977.738) {42,685.922)
26,486,155 32,565,196 39,051,351 .
32,502,495 47,232,328 79,734,823 3,769,148
86,643 195,068 281,711
1,173,199 3,802,838 4,976,087 138,607
13,797 88,776 102,573
110,472 141,345 251,817
24,662 27,187 51,849
25,032 1,451,224 1,476,256
22,155 144,394 166,549
1,461,834 1,235,280 2,697,114
1,631,373
9,687 64,842 74,529
44,436 69.196 113,632
2,885,274 7,025,132 9,910,406 1,769,982
11,872,440 9,860,532 20,932,972
1,999,166
31774 2,528,849 2,906,623
574,759 3,465,794 4,040,553
12,024,973 15,855,175 27,880,148 1,999,166
14,910,246 22,880,307 37,780,553 3,769,148
14,038,524 . 21,664,452 35,702,976
3,640,367 2,882,637 6,523,004
$ _17.678.891 S 34547.080 S 42,225980 S -




THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Metered sales
Penalty income
Risk management
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Depreciation
Maintenance
Interfund charpes
Production
Transmission and distribution
Street lighting
General and administrative
Employee beneflts.

Insurance
Customer deposit interest
Judgments and claims

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Rental income

Interest income

Interest expense

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

TOTAL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

Business-Type Activities - Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities -
internal Service
Water Electric Totals Fund
§ 4440216 § 24,798,043 § 29,238,259
121,727 121,727 .
S 2,108,119
18,083 152,706 170,789
4,580,026 24,950,749 29,530,775 2,108,119
201,601 11,476,806 11,678,407
698,299 1,496,099 2,194,398
374,158 14,229 388,387
751,627 3,313,174 4,064,801
2,114,815 2,114,815
771,242 1,122,874 1,894,116
260,440 260,440
1,172,542 1,176,395 2,348,937 441,624
470,284 2,761,516 3,231,800 866,692
75,000 258,333 333,333 198,858
9,841 9,841
_ 610,034
4,514,753 24,004,522 28,519,275 2,117,208
65,273 946,227 1,011,500 {9,089)
519,941 : 519,941
56,651 44,375 101,026 9,089
312,638 (307.847) {620,485)
263,954 {263,472) 482 9,089
329,227 682,755 1,011,982 -
17,349.664 23,864,334 41,213,998 .
$ 17678891 § 24547089 S 42225980 S -

Sce Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2015

CASH FLOVWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Revenue collected:
Cash seceived from charges for services
Cash recelved from insurance tecoveries
Payments for expenses .
Cash paymenits o other supplicrs of goods or services
Cash payments to employees Far services and related expenses
Cash paymenis to insurance carricrs and claimnnls
Cash payments 1o customers oo deposit - interest
Interna! activity-payments to other funds for expense reimbursements
Net Crsh Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from capital debt
Principal poid on capital debt
Interest paid on capita) debt
Net Cash Used by Capltal and Related Financing Activitics

CASI1 FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and rentat income
Net Cash Provided by [nvesting Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivaleats at Beginning of Yeor

Cash and Cash Equi\'nleut; at End of Yeur

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES;
Operating income
Adjustmens (o reconcile operating income to net

cash provided by operuting activities:
Deprecialion expense
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable
State ond federal aid receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Inctease (decrense) in:
Accounts payable
Accrucd lisbilitics
Cloims payable
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Due 10 cmployees' retirement system
Compensated gbsences
Net other post-cmployment benefits obligations

Net Cash Pravided by Operating Activitics

Business-Type Activities - Governmental
Enterprise Funds Aclivities -
Internal Service
Water Eleetric Totals Fund

$ 4,682,499 $25696,580 $30379079 § 2,108,119

(36.650)
(1,741,001}  (15,227,739) (16,968,740)
(1,037.940)  (5,199,658)  (6,237,598) (866,692)
(1,334,415)
(9,841) (9,841}
{35.227) 15,346 (19.881) -
1,868,331 5,274,688 7,143,019 (129.678)
(4,049,200)  (3,245227)  (7,292,427)
2,724,872 2,970,687 5,695,559
. (4.216,073) (982,261)  (2,198,304)
(320,358) (252.356) {372,718
(2.860.759) __(1.507.157) __ (4.367.916) -
576.592 44,375 620.967 9,089
576,592 44,375 620.967 9.089
(415,836) 3,811,906 3,396,070 (120,589)
4,288,234 - - 4,953,979 9235213 3:499,028

$ 3865398 § 3.765.885 §12.631.283 § 3.378.430

$ 65273 $ 946227 S 101500 S {9.089)
698,299 1,496,099 2,194,398
99,625 684,113 783,738 {36,690)
46,230 46,230
(14,461) 16,769 .2,308
(95,928)
18,773 200,895 219,668
961,466 1,553,772 2,515,238 67,596
(56) 8,490 8,434
(55,567)
(20,766} (1423) (22,189)
3,130 (53,708) (50,578)
(3,3549) (9,348) (12,702)
(9,823) (155,037) (164,360)
70.507 472,413 542,920
$ 1,868,331 § 5274688 S5 7143019 § (129.678)
— i ———

See Accompanying Notes ta the Financial Siatements
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
MAY 31,2015
Pension
Agency Trust
‘ Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash 3 591,047
Investments-mutual funds, at fair value $ 3,665,566
Accounts receivable 23,187
TOTAL ASSETS $ 614,234 § 3,665,566
— ]
LIABILITIES .
Accounts payable ' ) 17,790
Due to governmental funds 124,470
Deposits 71,222
Other liabilities 400,752
TOTAL LIABILITIES - § 614234 S -
NET POSITION '
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 3,665,566

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

Pension
Trust
Fund
ADDITIONS
Pension contributions : 3 235,900
Interest and net change in fair value of investments ' 286,075
TOTAL ADDITIONS 521,975
DEDUCTIONS
Pension benefits 49,241
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS ' 49,241
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 472,734
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,192,832
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 3,665,566

See Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A)

B)

O

General Statement:

The Village of Rockville Centre (the “Village™) was incorporated pursuant to an act of the New York
State Legislature in July 1893. The Village operates under a Board of Trustees form of government in
accordance with New York State Village Law and the various other applicable laws of the State of New
York. The Village Board of Trustees is the legislative body responsible for overall operation. The
Village provides the following services to its residents: public safety, health, transportation, economic
opportunity and development, culture and recreation, home and community services and general
administrative support.

The financial statements of the Village have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. Those principles are prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

Certain significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the Village are described below:

Financial Reporting Entity:

The financial reporting entity is based on criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity and as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations
are Component Units and GASB Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus. The
financial reporting entity consists of: (a) the primary government, which isthe Incorporated Village of
Rockville Centre, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c)
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. :

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the Village. The Village is not a component
unit of another reporting entity. The decision to include a potential component unit in the Village’s
reporting entity is based on several criteria including legal standing, fiscal dependency, and financial
accountability.

Basis Presentation:

The accounts of the Village are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent
fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts, which comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
balances/net assets, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance related
legal and contractual provisions.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

i)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements (The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) present inforration on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. The
effect of interfund activity, within the governmental activities column, has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financial accountable.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific program. Indirect expenses, principally employee benefits, are allocated to functional
areas in proportion to the payroll expended for those areas. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment and 3) interest
carned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Taxes and other items
not identified as program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. An
accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and
changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net position and changes in net position
presented in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. The Village has presented all major funds
that met those qualifications.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds.

Governmental Funds:

General Fund — General fund is the main operating fund of the Village. This fund is used to
account for all financial resources not accounted for in other funds. All general tax revenues and
other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other funds are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the general fund.

Capital Projects Fund — Capital projects fund is used to account for funds received and
expended for the construction, renovation, expansion and major improvement of various Village
facilities, thoroughfares, arterial streets and drainage improvements, improvements and
construction of parks and recreational facilities and acquisition of land and other large
nonrecuring projects. ‘
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

The Village also reports the following non-major governmental funds.

Special Revenue Funds —Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of
specified revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for certain defined purposes.
The special revenue funds of the Village are as follows:

Community Development Fund -This fund is used to account for projects financed
primarily by entitlements from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Section 8 Housing Fund ~This fund is used to account for resources received from the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development for housing assistance payment purposes.
The fiscal year-end of the Section 8 Housing Fund is June 30, 2015.

Special Purpose Fund ~This fund is used to account for various cultural and recreation
activities. Financing is provided by fees.

Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and the payment of
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental activities.

iii) Proprietary Fund:

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements inciude a Statement of Fund Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

The Village reports the following proprietary funds.

Enterprise Fund — Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private enterprises or where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred and/or net income is necessary for
management accountability. Enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that
provide services to the public. The operations of the electric utility and water utility funds are
recorded as enterprise funds.

Internal Service Fund - Internal service funds of the Village (which provide services

primarily to other funds of the Village) are presented, in summary form, as part of the
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements. Since the principal users of the internal services are

the Village’s governmental activities, financial activities of the internal service funds are

presented in the governmental activities column when presented at the government-wide

level. The costs of these services are allocated to the appropriate function/program (general

government, public safety, education, public works, health and human services, and culture

and recreation) in the Statement of Activities. The Village has established its risk

management activities for general liability, workers’ compensation and unemployment

benefits in an internal service fund.
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D)

INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

iv) Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the Village in
a trustee or custodial capacity. These activities are not included in the Government-Wide Financial
Statement, because their resources do not belong to the Village, and are not available to be used. The
Village has represented the following fiduciary funds:

- Agency Fund — This fund is strictly custodial in nature and does not involve the measurement of
results of operations. Assets are held by the Village as an agent for payroll liabilities, bid
deposits, and tickets related to the justice court.

Pension Trust Fund — This fund is used to account for investments for the Fire Service Length
of Service Award Program (Defined contribution pension plan) and is strictly custodial in nature
and does not involve the measurement of results of operations.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting:

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues and
expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting is related to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied. The Section 8 Housing Fund is recorded on the accrual basis of accounting.

The Government-Wide Financial Statements, Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements and Proprietary Fund
Financial Statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash transaction takes place. Nonexchange
transactions, in which the Village gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal
value in exchange, include property taxes, grants and donations. Under the accrual basis revenues are
recognized when earned, including unbilled services which are accrued.

The Fund Financial Statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual method of
accounting revenues are recognized when measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of
the transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The Village considers property taxes
as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. A 60-day availability period is used for
recognition of all other governmental fund revenues.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, charges for services,
interest income and intergovernmental revenues. Fines collected and held by the state at year-end on
behalf of the government are also recognized as revenues. All other governmental fund revenues are
recognized when received. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, claims
and judgments and net other post employment benefit obligations are recorded only when payment is
due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds and the internal
service fund are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds and the
internal service fund include the costs of services, administrative expenses, depreciation costs and
benefit costs. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses. Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued on or
before November 30, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements to the extent that they do not conflict or contradict guidance of the GASB.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for their business
type activities and enterprise funds. The Village has elected to not follow subsequent private sector
guidance.

Restricted Resources:

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are
available, the Village's policy concerning which to apply first varies with the intended use, and with
associated legal requirements, many of which are described elsewhere in these Notes. :

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements.
Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. :

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Village considers all highly liquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The Statement of Cash Flows
presented used the direct method. Certain cash balances are restricted by various legal and contractual
obligations such as legal reserves, grants and debt agreements.

Property Taxes Receivable:

Real property tax rates are set by the Board prior to May 1%, signed by the Mayor no later than May 3 1¥ and
become an enforceable lien on real property as of June 1. Property taxes are due in two installments
during June and December without penalty.

Other Receivables:
Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and individuals for services provided by
the Village. Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized as earned or as specific program

expenditures/expenses are incurred. Allowances are reported when accounts are deemed to be
uncollectible.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Prepaid Expenses/Expenditures:

Prepaid expenses/expendinires consist of insurance costs which have been satisfied prior to the end of the
fiscal year, but represent items which have been provided for in the subsequent year’s budget and/or will
benefit such periods.

Inventory:

The inventories reflected in the Proprietary Funds are stated at the lower of average cost or market.
Purchases of inventoriable items at other locations are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and
year-end balances at these locations are not material.

Interfund Transactions:

The operations of the Village include transactions between funds. These transactions may be temporary
in nature, such as with interfund borrowings. The Village typically loans resources between funds for
the purpose of providing cash flow. These interfund receivables and payables are expected to be repaid
within one year. Permanent transfers of funds include the transfer of expenditure and revenues to
provide financing or other services.

The governmental funds report all interfund transactions as originally recorded. Interfund receivables
and payables may be netted on the accompanying governmental funds balance sheet when it is the
Village’s practice to settle these amounts at a net balance based upon the right of legal offset.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund
activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been
eliminated except those representing balances between governmental activities and the business-type
activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government
column. In the Statement of Activities, internal service fund transactions have been eliminated;
however, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been
eliminated.

Refer to Note 15 for a detailed disclosure by individual fund for interfund receivables, payables,
expenditures and revenues activity.

Capital Assets:

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements and in the Fund Financial Statements for the proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if the actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets
are valued at their fair market value on the date donated. Repairs and maintenance are recorded as
expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized. Interest has not been capitalized during the
construction period on property, plant or equipment.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Assets capitalized, not including infrastructure assets, have an original cost of $5,000 or more and over
one year of useful life. Infrastructure assets capitalized have an original cost of $5,000 or more. In the
case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e. those reported by governmental
activities), the Village chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or amount.
The Village was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through
backtrending (i.e. estimating the current replace cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and used an
appropriate price level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year).

Depreciation has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method.
Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and equipment 8-50 years
Infrastructure 20-50 years

Deferred Qutflows of Resources:

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Village has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category. The first is a deferred charge on refunding in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements which represents the unamortized portion of the deferred charge on refunding. These costs
are being amortized over the term of the respective bond issue. -

Deferred Inflow of Resources:

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and governmental funds Balance Sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Village
has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. The item includes taxes received in advance in
the general fund and Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Collections in Advance:

Collections in advance arise when the Village receives resources before it has legal claim to them, such
as for the general fund, monies received in advance were primarily for service assistance payments for
the next fiscal year, for the proprietary funds, monies are received before services are delivered. In
subsequent periods, when the recognition criteria are met, or when the Village has legal claim to the
resources, the liability for collections in advance is removed and revenues are recorded.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):

Vested Employee Benefits:
i) Compensated absences:

Compensated absences consist of unpaid accumulated annual sick leave, vacation and terminal
leave:

Sick leave eligibility and accumulation is specified in negotiated labor contracts. Upon retirement or
death, police officers may contractually receive a payment for a portion of their unused accumulated
sick leave.

The Village employees are granted vacation in varying amounts, based primarily on length of
service and contracts. Some earned benefits may be forfeited if not taken within varying time
periods.

Consistent with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, the liability has
been calculated using the vesting method and an accrual for that liability is included in the
Government-Wide and the Proprietary Financial Statements. The compensated absences liability is
calculated based on the pay rates as mandated in employee contracts in effect at year end.

Other Benefits:

" Village employees participate in the New York State Employees’ Retirement System and the New York

State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System. In addition to providing pension benefits, the
Village provides post-employment health insurance coverage and survivor benefits for retired
employees and their survivors in accordance with the provision of various employment contracts in
effect at the time of retirement. Pursuant to contractual provisions Village’s employees may become
eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the Village. Health care
benefits are provided through plans whose premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year. The
Village recognizes the cost of providing health insurance by recording its share of insurance premiums
as an expenditure.

Short-Term Debt:

The Village may issue Bond Anticipation Notes (BAN), in anticipation of proceeds from the subsequent
sale of bonds. These notes are recorded as current liabilities of the funds that will actually receive the
proceeds from the issuance of bonds. State law requires that BANs issued for capital purposes be
converted to long-term financing within five years after the original issue dated.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):
Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations:

Payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements. In the governmental funds, payables and accrued liabilities are paid in a timely manner and
in full from current financial resources. Claims and judgments, and compensated absences that will be
paid from governmental funds, are reported as a liability in the Funds Financial Statements only to the
extent that they are due for payment in the current year. Bonds and other long-term obligations that will
be paid from governmental funds are recognized as a liability in the Fund Financial Statements when
due. Bonds payable are reported net of applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
recognized as an expenditure/outflow of resources when incurred.

In the fund statements, only that portion of long-term obligations expected to be financed from
expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund liability. The face amount of the debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Premiums related to the issuance of long-debt are amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
issue and are presented as part of the general obligation bonds payable in the non-current liabilities.

Long-term obligations represent the Village’s future obligations or future economic outflows. The
liabilities are reported as due in one year or due within more than one year in the Statement of Net
Position.

Equity Classifications:
i) Government-Wide Financial Statements:
In the Government-Wide Financial Statements there are three classes of net position:

Net investment in capital assets - consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation)

reduced by outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or

improvement of those assets including any deferred outflows or inflows of resources related to the
_outstanding debt, and excluding any unspent debt proceeds.

Restricted net position - reports net position when constraints placed on the assets are either
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. :

Unrestricted net position — reports all other net position that do not meet the definition of the above
two classifications and are deemed to be available for general use by the Village.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):
if) Fund Financial Statements:
In the Fund Financial Statements, there are three classifications of fund balance presented:

(1) Restricted fund balance — Includes amounts with constraints placed on the use of resources
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other
governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The
Village has classified the following as restricted:

Capital Non-Major
General Projects Governmental
Restricted for: Fund Fund Funds Total
Employee benefit
accrued liability $ 1,797,172 5 1,797,172
Capital projects : $ 480,610 480,610
Unspent proceeds ' 9,670,010 9,709,559
Section 8 housing $ 131,104 131,104
Special purpose-culture and
recreation and public safety 191,189 191,189
Debt service 280,812 280,812
Total ' $1,797,172 $ 10,150,620 § 603,105 $§ 12,590,446

The restricted fund balance in the special purpose fund (special purpose) may only be used for
recreational and police programs.

(2) Assigned fund balance — As per the Villages fund balance policy, this includes amounts that are
constrained by the Village’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed. This intent can be expressed by the Board or through the Board delegating this
responsibility to the Village management through Board policies. The purchasing agent,
comptroller and the Board of Trustees have the responsibility to assign fund balance per their
fund balance policy. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all
governmental funds except for the general fund. The Village has classified the following as
assigned:
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):
Capital Non-Major

General Projects Governmental
Assigned for: Fund Fund Funds Total _
Tax certiorari $ 1,399,956 $ 1,399,956
General support 50,627 50,627
Public safety 170,467 170,467
Transportation 419 419
Culture & recreation 51,041 51,041
Outside legal 40,384 40,884
Community development $ 1,264 1,264
Capital projects $ 1,028,398 1,028,398

. Total $ 1,713,394 $1,028398 § 1,264 § 2,743,056

Encumbrances

Encumbrances have been assigned based upon the Village’s intent to be used for a specific
purpose such as general support, instruction and capital projects. See Note 3 for further detail
regarding accountability and Note 18 for further detail regarding significant encumbrances.

The Village has adopted a fund balance policy which authorizes the Board or their designated
official to assign amounts for a specific purpose. Additionally, the Board of Trustees shall
delegate the authority to assign fund balance, for encumbrance purposes, to the purchasing agent
who has the delegated authority to sign purchase orders.

(3) Unassigned fund balance ~Includes the residual fund balance for the general fund and includes
residual fund balance deficits of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by
offsetting of assigned fund balance amounts. Assignments of fund balance cannot cause a
negative unassigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance includes $3,041,776 in the general
fund. :

Order of Use of Fund Balance

In circumstances where an expenditure is incurred for a purpose for which amounts are available
in multiple fund balance classifications (e.g., expenditures related to reserves), the expenditure is
to be spent first from the restricted fund balance to the extent appropriated by either budget vote
or board approved budget revision and then from unrestricted fund balance. Expenditures
incurred in unrestricted fund balances shail be applied first to the assigned fund balance to the
extent there is an assignment and then to the unassigned balance.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED):
Future Changes in Accounting Standards:

The Village will evaluate the impact each of these pronouncements may have on its financial statements
and will implement them as applicable and when material.

GASB has issued Statements No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date, effective for the year ending May 31, 2016.

GASB has issued Statements No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, No. 73, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement
68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, No. 76 The Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, and No. 77, Tax
Abatement Disclosures, effective for the year ending May 31, 2017.

GASB has issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans,
effective for the year ending May 31, 2018.

GASB has issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, effective for the year ending May 31, 2019.

NOTE 2 — EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN FUND STATEMENTS AND
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS: "

Due to the differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting used in the Fund Financial Statements
and the Government-Wide Financial Statements, certain financial transactions are treated differently. The basic
financial statements contain a full reconciliation of these items. The differences result primarily from the
economic focus of the Statement of Activities, compared with the current financial resources focus of the

governmental funds.
A) Total fund balances of governmental funds vs. net position of governmental activities:

Total fund balances of the Village’s governmental funds differ from net position of governmental
activities reported in the Statement of Net Position. The difference primarily results from the additional
long-term economic focus of the Statement of Net Position versus the solely current financial resources
focus of the governmental fund Balance Sheets.
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NOTE 2 — EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN FUND STATEMENTS AND
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS (CONTINUED):

B)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances vs. Statement of Activities:

Differences between the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances and the Statement of Activities fall into one of the four broad categories. The amounts shown
below represent:

i) Long-term revenue differences:

Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when they are
considered “available”, whereas the Statement of Activities reports revenues when earned.
Differences in long-term expenses arise because governmental funds report on a modified accrual
basis, whereas the accrual basis of accounting is used on the Statement of Activities.

ii) Capital related differences:

Capital related differences include the difference between proceeds for the sale of capital assets
reported on Fund Financial Statements and the gain or loss on the sale of assets reported on the
Statement of Activities, and the difference between recording an expenditure for the purchase of
capital items in the Fund Financial Statements and depreciation expense on those items as recorded
in the Statement of Activities.

iii) Long-term debt transaction differences:

Long-term debt transaction differences occur because both interest and principal payments are
recorded as expenditures in the Fund Financial Statements, whereas interest payments are recorded
in the Statement of Activities as incurred, and principal payments are recorded as a reduction of
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

iv) Employee benefit allocations:

Expenditures for employee benefits are not allocated to a specific function on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances based on the requirements of New York
State. These costs have been allocated based on total salary for each function in the Statement of
Activities.

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

A)

Budgetary Data:

The Village generally follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements.

i) On or before March 20", the budget officer submits to the Village Clerk a tentative operating budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following June 1. The tentative budget includes the proposed
expenditures and means of financing.

if) The Village Clerk then submits the tentative budget to the Village Board of Trustees, on or before
March 31%,
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NOTE 3 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED):

B)

O

iii) The Board of Trustees conducts a public hearing on the tentative budget to obtain taxpayer
comments on or before April 15%,

iv) After the public hearing and on or before May 1%, the Trustees meet to consider and adopt the
budget.

v) Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control device for the
general and debt service funds.

vi) Budgets for the general and debt service funds are legally adopted annually on a basis consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles. The capital projects fund is budgeted on a project
basis. Annual budgets are not adopted for the Community Development, Section 8 Housing, Special
Purpose or Proprietary funds.

vii) The Village Board has established legal control of the budget at the function level of expenditures.
Transfers between appropriation accounts, at the function level, require approval by the Board of
Trustees. Any modifications to appropriations resulting from increases in revenue estimates or
supplemental reserve appropriations also require a majority vote by the Board.

viii) Appropriations in the general and debt service funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year, except that
outstanding encumbrances are re-appropriated in the succeeding year, pursuant to the Uniform
System of Accounts promulgated by the Office of the State Comptroller.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board of Trustees. Individual
amendments for the current year were not material in relation to the original appropriations which were
amended.

Property Tax Limitation:

The Village is authorized by the State Constitution to levy taxes the lower of 2% or the rate of inflation,
of the five year average full valuation of taxable real estate located within the Village and any amounts
appropriated for debt service. In accordance with this definition, the maximum amount of the levy for
2014-2015 was $86,294,644 which exceeded the actual levy by $62,582,759.

Encumbrances:

Encumbrance accounting is used for budget control and monitoring purposes and is reported as a part of
the governmental funds. Under this method, purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded to reserve applicable appropriations. Outstanding encumbrances as
of year-end are presented as reservations of fund balance and do not represent expenditures or liabilities.
These commitments will be honored in the subsequent period. Related expenditures are recognized at
_that time, as the liability is incurred or the commitment is paid.
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NOTE 4 - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS:

A)

B)

Cash

The Village’s investment policies are governed by New York State statutes. In addition, the Village is
required to have its own written investment policy. Village monies must be deposited in FDIC-insured
commercial banks or trust companies located within the state. The Treasurer is authorized to use demand
accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of
the U.S. treasury and U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of New York State or its
localities.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Village’s deposits may not be returned
to it. ' While the Village does not have a specific policy for custodial credit risk, New York State statutes
govem the Village’s investment policies, as discussed previously in these Notes.

None of the Village’s aggregate bank balances, not covered by depository insurance, were exposed to
custodial credit risk as described above at year end.

Restricted cash represents cash and cash equivalents where use is limited by legal requirements. These
assets represent amounts required by statute to be reserved for various purposes. Restricted cash as of May

31, 2015 includes $12,764,926 in the governmental funds.

Investments

Investments in the Pension Trust Fund are stated at fair market value. These investments are not subject to
risk categorization, See note 14 for additional information.

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES:

Receivable balances have been disaggregated by type and presented separately in the financial statements.
Receivables with allowances for uncollectible accounts as of May 31, 2015 are presented below.

General Fund Electric Fund  Water Fund Section 8

Taxes Accounts Accounts Accounts Accounts
Receivable  Receivable Receivable Receivable Receivable

Gross receivables $ 59,056 §$ 156,201 § 3,508,422 § 1,847,030 § 31,691
Less: allowance for _ _
uncollectibles (21,192) (151,040) (182,317) (2,523) . (12,545)

Net receivables $ 37864 § 5161 §$ 3,326,105 $ 1,844,507 § 19,146
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NOTE 6 — STATE AND FEDERAL AID RECEIVABLES:
State and federal aid receivables at May 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

General Fund
- Due from FEMA & SAFR $ 104,935

Capital Fund
Due from NYS 989,804
Total - Governmental funds $_1,004,739

Village management has deemed these amounts to be fully collectible.

NOTE 7 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Due from other governments at May 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

General Fund

Due from Nassau County - mortgage tax $ 67,157
Community Development Fund
Due from Nassau County - grant 26,579
Capital Fund
Due from Nassau County - grant 334,268
Total 3 428.004

Village management has deemed these amounts to be fully collectible.
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS:

The breakdown by major asset groups at May 31, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Disposals Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, nat being depreciated
Land ‘ $ 4,576,378 4,576,378
Construction-in-progress 4,344,646 $ 8,383,778 (1,547,755) 11,180,669
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 8,921,024 8,383,778 (1,547,755) 15,757,047
Capital assets, being depreciated
Building and equipment 30,552,036 623,672 1,239,855 32,415,563
Infrastructure 27,177,148 27,177,148
Total capital assets, being depreciated 57,729,184 623,672 1,239,855 59,592,711
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and equipment 12,780,357 964,679 (208,383) 13,536,153
Infrastructure 17,492,838 1,405,435 18,898,273
Total accumulated depreciation 30,273,195 2,370,114 (208,883) 32,434,426
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 26,782,357 (1,746,442) 1,448,738 27,158,285
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 36,377,013 $ 6,637,336 3 (99,017) 42,915,332
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land _ 3 375,885 _ 375,885
Construction-in-progress 5,719,013 $ 7,503,179 $ (4,127,656) 9,094,536
Total capital assets, not being ,depréciated 6,094,898 7,503,179 (4,127,656) 9,470,421
Capital assets, being depreciated
Building and equipment 88,782,942 - 3,483,910 92,266,852
Total capital assets, being depreciated 88,782,942 - 3,483,910 92,266,852
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and equipment 40,924,518 2,194938 (433,534) 42,685,922
Total accumulated depreciation 40,924,518 2,194,938 (433,534) 42,685,922
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 49,517,031 (2,194,938) 3,917,444 49,580,930
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 53,953,322 $ 5,308,241 $ {210,212) 59,051,351
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED):

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General support $ 95386
Public safety 374,300
Transportation 1,539,729
Culture & recreation 238,801

-~ Home & community services 121,898
Total $ 2,370,114

NOTE 9 —- DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

The deferred charge on refunding, as recorded in the Government-Wide Financial Statements as a deferred
outflow of resources, as of May 31, 2015 consisted of the following:

Governmental  Business-Type

Activities Activities
Loss on defeasance $ 364,557 § 281,711
Total deferred charge on refunding - $ 364,557 § 281,711

The loss on defeasance pertaining to the 2012 refunding as recorded in the Government-Wide Financial
Statements is being amortized using the straight-line method over 8 years, the time to maturity of the defeased
bonds, at the time of refunding.

NOTE 10 - SHORT-TERM DEBT:
Transactions in short-term debt for the year are summarized below:
Interest Beginning ~ Ending
Rate Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
Governmental activities: '
Bond anticipation notes 1.79% $ 102,000 § - $ 102,000 3§ -
Total short-term debt activity $ 102,000 § - $ 102000 § -

The Village issued the Bond Anticipation Notes (“BANs”) for interim financing of capital project fund
expenditures and proprietary fund capital expenditures related to the Village's capital projects.

Interest on short-term debt for the year was $1,811.
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Long-term liability balances and activity for the year are summarized below:

Primary Government
Governmental activities:
General obligation debt:
Bonds payable

Premium

Total bonds payable

Other liabilities:
Compensated absences
Claims payable
Net other post employment

benefits obligations
Total other liabilities

Total Governmental activities

Business-Type Activities
General obligation debt:
Bonds payable
Premium
Total bonds payable

Other liabilities:
Compensated absences
Net other post employment
benefit obligations
Total other liabilities
Total Business-Type activities

Total Primary Government

Beginning
Balance

Issued

Redeemed

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

$ 24,260,000

$ 8,760,000

$ 2,895,000

$ 30,125,000

$ 3,360,000

774,254 90,866 93,545 771,575 97,951
25,034,254 8,850,866 2,988,545 30,896,575 3,457,951
15,109,637 501,950 73,126 15,538,461 388,462

3,686,108 1,060,347 1,115,914 3,630,541 1,631,375
22,183,434 5,589,357 1,719,820 26,052,971
40,979,179 7,151,654 2,908,860 45,221,973 2,019,837
66,013,433 16,002,520 5,897,405 76,118,548 5,471,788
19,465,000 5,700,000 2,200,000 22,965,000 2,635,000

663,420 59,259 57,593 665,086 62,114

20,128,420 5,759,259 2,257,593 23,630,086 2,697,114
3,146,012 27,560 192,420 2,981,152 74,529
3,497,633 841,112 208,192 4,040,553
6,643,645 868,672 490,612 7,021,703 74,529

26,772,065 6,627,931 2,748,205 30,651,791 2,771,643

5 92,785,498

$ 22,630,451

§ 8,645,610

$ 106,770,339

$ 8249431

Governmental fund liabilities for bonds are liquidated by the debt service fund, which is funded primarily by the
general fund. The general fund has typically been used to liquidate long-term liabilities for the governmental
activities for claims, compensated absences and net other post employment benefit obligations. The water and
electric funds are typically been used to liquidate long-term liabilities for business-type activities for bonds
payable, compensated absences, and net other post employment benefit obligations based upon their respective

obligations.
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General Obligation Bonds

- General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general taxing power for the payment
of the debt obligations of the Village. General obligation bonds require the Village to compute, at the time
_other taxes are levied, the rate of tax requu'ed to provide (in each year bonds are outstanding) a fund to pay
interest and principal at maturity. The Village is in compliance with this requirement.

Arbitrage provisions of the Internal Revenue Tax Act of 1986 require the Village to rebate excess arbitrage
earnings from bond proceeds to the federal government. There were no excess arbitrage earnings for the year

ended May 31, 2015.

Existing serial and statutory bond obligations at May 31, 2015 were comprised of the following for

governmental activities, exclusive of premiums:

Original
Year of Issue Final Interest Outstanding
Purpose Issue Amount Maturity Rate at Year End

Public Improvements 2005 2,170,000 June 2025 3.50-4.00% $ -
Public Improvements 2006 3,240,000 June 2021 4.00-4.05% 210,000
Public Improvements 2007 4,720,000 September 2027  3.75-4.00% 650,000
Public Improvements 2008 825,000 October 2023 4.25-4.50% 405,000
Public Improvements 2009 2,256,000 July 2015 2.00-4.00% 185,000
Public Improvements 2009 4,295,000 December 2024 2.00-3.75% 2,400,000
Public Improvements 2010 3,715,000  February 2026 2.00-3.875% 2,450,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 100,000  October 2016 2.00-3.00% 50,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 650,000 June 2019 2.00-3.00% 460,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 360,000 June 2017 2.00-3.00% 210,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 495,000 June 2018 2.00-3.00% 355,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 885,000 June 2019 2.00-3.00% 705,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 855,000 June 2020 2.00-3.00% 855,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 1,205,000 June 2021 2.00-3.00% 1,205,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 1,780,000 June 2022 2.00-4.00% 1,780,000
Public Improvements 2012 2,480,000 August 2027 1.50-3.00% 2,090,000
Serial Bond

(Retirement System

Contribution) 2013 B 220,000  October 2018 3.00% 180,000
Public Improvements 2013 7,715,000 October 2028 2.00-3.00% 7,175,000
Public Improvements 2015 8,760,000  February 2030 2.00-3.00% 8,760,000

$ 46,726,000
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NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED): -

Existing serial and statutory bond obligations at May 31, 2015 were comprised of the following for business-
type activities, exclusive of premiums:

Original
Year of Issue Final Interest Outstanding
Purpose Issue Amount Maturity Rate at Year End
Water Fund
General Improvements 1993 $ 2,700,000 September 2018 4.85-5.00% $ 400,000
General Improvements 2005 1,200,000 June 2014 3.50-4.00% , -
General Improvements 2006 1,600,000 June 2015 4.00-4.05% 125,000
General Improvements 2008 2,000,000 October 2023 4.25-4.50% 1,170,000
General Improvements 2009 849,000 July 2015 2.00-4.00% 100,000
General Improvements 2009 1,200,000 December 2024 2.00-3.75% 800,000
General Improvements 2011 2,000,000 February 2026 2.00-3.875% 1,500,000
General Improvements 2012 4,500,000 August 2027 1.50-3.00% 3,895,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 1,370,000 June 2021 2.00-4.00% 1,230,000
General Improvements 2013 400,000 QOctober 2028 2.00-3.00% 380,000
Public Improvements 2015 2,700,000  February 2030 2.00-3.00% 2,700,000
Electric Fund

General Improvements 1992 . 10,900,000 August 2017 590-6.00% 1,275,000
General Improvements 2005 500,000 June 2014 3.50-4.00% -
General Improvements 2006 250,000 June 2015 4.00-4.05% 15,000
General Improvements 2007 : 2,000,000 June 2016 3.75-4.00% -~ 200,000
General Improvements 2009 1,000,000 December 2024  2.00-3.75% 675,000
General Improvements 2011 1,400,000  February 2026 2.00-3.875% 1,100,000
General Improvements 2012 1,250,000 August 2027 1.50-3.00% 1,090,000
Refunding Bonds 2012 3,505,000 June 2027 2.00-4.00% 3,310,000
Public Improvements 2015 3,000,000 February 2030 2.00-3.00% 3,000,000

$ 44,324,000 $ 22,965,000

On February 25, 2015, the Village issued $14,460,000 in serial bonds, of which $8,760,000 was recorded in the
capital projects fund, for general public improvements, $3,000,000 was recorded in the electric fund for general
improvements and $2,700,000 was recorded in the water fund for general improvements. The bond is payable
over 15 years with an interest rate ranging from 2.0% to 3.0%. The premium on the 2015 bond of $90,866 is
being amortized using the straight-line method over 15 years, the time to maturity of the 2015 serial bond.

The premium on bond refunding pertaining to the 2012 refunding and the 2012 serial bond, as recorded in the

Government-Wide Financial Statements, are being amortized using the straight-line method over 11 years and
15 years, respectively, the time to maturity of the 2012 refunded bond and the 2012 serial bond.
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NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED!:

The following is a summary of debt service requirements for bonds payable:

Fiscal Year
Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
May 31, Principal - Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2016 § 3,360,000 '§ 789,743 $ 2,635,000 § 678,286 $ 5,995,000 $ 1,468,029
2017 3,095,000 711,256 2,320,000 603,557 5,415,000 1,314,813
2018 3,035,000 629,006 2,325,000 524,594 5,360,000 1,153,600
2019 2,925,000 544,100 1,920,000 454,032 4,845,000 998,132
2020 2,730,000 462,850 1,825,000 397,182 4,555,000 860,032

2021-2025 9,565,000 1,399,263 8,440,000 1,202,017 18,005,000 2,601,280

2026-2027 5,415,000 378,888 3,500,000 244,656 8,915,000 623,544

$ 30,125,000 § 4,915,106  $22,965,000 $ 4,104,324 $ 53,090,000 $ 9,019,430

Interest on long-term debt for the year was composed of:

Governmental  Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government

Interest paid $ 767,208 $ 634,748 $ 1,401,956
Less interest accrued in the prior year (320,256) (245,322) (565,578)
Plus interest accrued in the current year 258,564 251,817 - 510,381
Plus amortization of deferred charge 72,911 36,835 109,746
Less amortization of premium (93,545) (57,593) (151,138)

Total expense $ 684,882 $ 620,485 $ 1,305,367

NOTE 12 — DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, deferred inflow of resources, as of May 31, 2015 consisted of
the following

Governmental
Activities

Taxes received in advance s 122,788

The taxes received in advance will be reported as revenue in the subsequent year.
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NOTE 13 - PENSION PLANS:

A)

B)

O

General Information:

“The Village participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) (the

“System”) and the Local Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS) (the “System”). These are cost-sharing
multiple employer public employee retirement systems. The Systems provide retirement benefits as well as
death and disability benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to
employees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (NYSRSSL). As set
forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York (Comptroller) serves as sole trustee and
administrative head of the System.

Provisions and Administration:

The Systems provide retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. New York State
Retirement and Social Security Law governs obligations of employers and employees to contribute, and
benefits to employees. The Systems issue publicly available financial reports that include financial
statements and required supplementary information. Those reports may be obtained by writing to
NYSERS, Office of the State Comptroller, 110 State Street, Albany, New York 12244,

Funding Policy:

The Systems are noncontributory for the employees who joined prior to July 27, 1976. Those who joined
the Systems after July 27, 1976 and prior to January 1, 2010 are required to contribute 3% of their salary,
except that employees in the Systems more than ten years are no longer required to contribute. For
employees who joined after January 1, 2010 and before April 1, 2012, employees in ERS contribute 3% of
their salary throughout their active membership. Those joining on or after April 1, 2012 are required to
contribute between 3% and 6%, dependent on their salary, for their entire working career. Under the
authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptrolier certifies the rates expressed as proportions of members' payroll
annually which are used in computing the contributions required to be made by employers to the pension
accumulated fund.

The Village is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The Village contributions made to
the Systems were equal to 100% of the contributions required for each year. The required contributions for
the current year and two preceding years were as follows:

ERS PFRS
2015 $2489,116 § 2,886,280
2014 $2,795,580 § 2,321,824
2013 $2,134925 § 1,898,421

The PFRS contribution was charged to the general fund.
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NOTE 13 — PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED):

The current ERS contribution was charged as follows:

Fund Amount
General $ 1,627,810
Community Development 4,974
Section 8 Housing 23,535
Water 134,506

Electric 698,291
: $ 2,489,116

As detailed above, the general fuﬁd, water fund, and electric fund have typically been used to liquidate
the net pension obligation.

D)  Deferred Compensation Plan:

The Village has established a deferred compensation plan in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 for all employees. The Village makes no contributions into this plan. The amount deferred by
eligible employees for the year ended May 31, 2015 totaled $997,184.

NOTE 14 — PENSION TRUST — FIRE SERVICE AWARDS PROGRAM:

The Village established a defined contribution length of service award program (the “LOSAP”) for the active
volunteer firefighters of the Village of Rockville Centre Volunteer Fire Department. The program was-
established pursuant to Article 11-A of the General Municipal Law. The program provides municipally-funded
pension-like benefits to facilitate the recruitment and retention of active volunteer firefighters. The Village is
the sponsor of the program.

A) Program Description

i) Participation, vesting and service credit

Active volunteer firefighters who have reached the age of 18 and who have completed 1 year of
firefighting service , and upon earning 50 or more points in a calendar year after 1993 are eligible to
participate in the program. Participants acquire a nonforfeitable right to a service award after being
credited with 5 years of firefighting service. In general, an active volunteer firefighter is credited
with a year of firefighting service for each calendar year after the establishment of the program in
which he or she accumulates fifty points. Points are granted for the performance of certain activities
in accordance with a system established by the sponsor on the basis of a statutory list of activities
and point values. A participant may also receive up to 5 years of credit for firefighting performed
prior to 1994,
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NOTE 14 - PENSION TRUST - FIRE SERVICE AWARDS PROGRAM (CONTINUED):

B)

O

ii) Benefits

A participant’s benefit under the program is the amount resulting from the contributions made by the
sponsor on behalf of the participant, plus interest and/or other earnings resulting from the investment
of the contributions, less necessary administrative costs, forfeitures and losses resulting from the
investment of contributions. Contributions in the amount of $700 are made on behalf of each
participant who is credited with a year of firefighting service. Except in the case of permanent total
disability or death, benefits are payable when a participant reaches entitlement age. Participants
remain eligible to accumulate points after entitlement age has been reached. The participants age 65
and over receive payment directly from the Village for their service. '

Fiduciary Investment and Control

Service credit is determined by the Board of Trustees of the sponsor, based on information certified to
the Board of Trustees by each fire company having members who participate in the program. Each fire
company must maintain all required records on forms prescribed by the Board of Trustees. The Board
of Trustees of the sponsor performs the administration of the program. Disbursements for the payment
of benefits or administrative expenses must be approved by the Board of Trustees.

Program assets are required to be held in trust by LOSAP legislation, for the exclusive purpose of
providing benefits to participants and their beneficiaries or for the purpose of defraying the reasonable
expenses of the operation and administration of the program.

Authority to invest program assets is vested in Mutual of America. Subject to restrictions in the program
document, program assets are invested in accordance with a statutory “prudent person” rule. Each
program participant discusses future investments on their behalf with Mutual of America on an
individual basis.

Program Financial Condition
i) Assets and Liabilities

Assets Available for Benefits

% of total
Mutual Funds 100.00% $ 3,665,566
Less: Liabilites -
- Total Net Assets Available for Benefits $ 3,665,566
Unfunded Liability for Prior Service $ -
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NOTE 14 — PENSION TRUST ~ FIRE SERVICE AWARDS PROGRAM (CONTINUED):

i) Receipts and Disbursements

Plan net assets, beginning of year $ 3,192,832

Changes during the year:
Additions
Plan contributions 235,900
Interest and net change in
fair value of investments 286,075
Subtractions
Plan benefit withdrawals (49,241)

Plan net assets, end of year $ 3,665,566

iii) Contributions

Plan contributions for active volunteer firefighters above included $110,600 in benefits earned for
the prior year, by participants under 65 years of age. The accrued liability recorded in the general
fund at May 31, 2014 also included the amount due to the age 65 and older of $19,600 for a total .
accrual of $130,200.

NOTE 15 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS —- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, PROPRIETARY FUND
AND FIDUCIARY FUND:

Interfund Interfund
Receivable Payable - Revenues Expenditures

General fund § 223645 § 29,095 $ 3,734,430
Capital projects fund 11,093 § 102,000 4,302
Non-major governmental 12,788 . 61,195 3,636,732

Total government activities - 236,433 101,383 3,738,732 3,738,732
Water fund ‘ 16,728 24,663
Electric fund 24,542 27,187
Internal service fund
Fiduciary agency fund 124,470

Totals $ 277,703 $ 277,703 $ 3,738,732 § 3,738,732

The Village typically transfers monies from the general fund to the debt service fund, to finance principal and
interest payments as they become due. The Village typically transfers monies from the general fund to the
capital projects fund to finance capital projects. Unexpended funds from the capital projects fund are
transferred to the debt service fund as bonded projects are completed.
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NOTE 15 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS= PROPRIETARY FUND
AND FIDUCIARY FUND (CONTINUED):

The Village typically loans resources to the other funds for the purpose of mitigating the effects of transient
cash flow issues.

All interfund payables are expected to be repaid within one year.

NOTE 16 - POST-EMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS:

A)

B)

)

Plan Description

The Village provides post employment (health insurance, life insurance, etc.) coverage to retired
employees in accordance with the provisions of various employment contracts. The benefit levels,
employee contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Village’s contractual
agreements. New York State Health Insurance Program Empire Plan, (the “Plan™) is a single-employer
defined benefit healthcare plan administered by New York State. The Plan provides medical insurance
benefits to eligible retirees and their spouses. Article 37 of the Statutes of New York State assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Village. The Plan does not issue a stand
alone, publicly ‘available report since there are no assets legally segregated for the sole purpose of
paying benefits under the Plan.

Funding Poelicy

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Village are established and may be amended by
the Village. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For
fiscal year 2015, the Village contributed $2,018,012 for current premiums and an additional 30 to
prefund benefits. Plan members contribute 0% to 65% as per respective collective bargaining
agreements.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the
annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the
components of the Village’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the Plan,
and changes in the Village’s net OPEB obligation to the Plan:
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NOTE 16 - POST-EMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS (CONTINUED):

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

. Annual required contribution $ 6,831,246
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,027,242
Adjustment to annual required contribution - (1,428,019)

‘ Annual OPEB cost {(expense) 6,430,469
Contributions made (2,018,012)
Increase in net OPEB obligation . 4,412,457
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year 25,681,067
Net OPEB obligation-end of year $ 30,093,524
Annual OPEB cost : $ 6,430,469
Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 21%
Net OPEB obligation-end of year $ 30,093,524

The Village’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan and the net
OPEB obligation for 2015 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage
Annual of Annual
Fiscal Year Required Annual OPEB OPEB Cost Net OPEB

Ending Contribqtion OPEB Cost  Contributions  Contributed Oblig_ation

May 31,2013 § 6,933,346  § 6,689,221 § 1,847,904 28% § 20,484,469
May 31,2014 $ 7,409,583  § 7,089,905 § 1,893,307 27% § 25,681,067
May 31,2015 § 6,831,246  § 6,430,469 § 2,018,012 31% § 30,093,524

D) Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was 0% funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $71,111,830 and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $71,111,830. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employees covered by the plan) was $24,185,039, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered
payroll was 294%.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the
annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revisions as actual resuits are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements
provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing
or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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NOTE 16 - POST-EMPLOYMENT (HEALTH INSURANCE) BENEFITS (CONTINUED):

E)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and
plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the historical pattern
of sharing benefit costs between the Village and the plan members to that point. The actuarial methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the June 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions include a 4.0% discount rate and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 9.5%
initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5% after 12 years. This rate includes a 5%
inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized using the level dollar amortization method on an

open basis. The remaining amortization at May 31, 2015, was 30 years.

NOTE 17 — RISK MANAGEMENT:

A)

B)

General:

The Village is self-insured for general, auto and police professional liability. The Village has retained a
$300,000 liability per occurrence except for auto which is retained at $250,000 and in order to reduce its
exposure to catastrophic losses on insured events, has purchased “stop loss” insurance. Certain
governmental funds and the enterprise fund are charged a premium by the Internal Service Fund.

The Village is self-insured for workers’ compensation benefits. The workers’ compensation claims are
covered up to statutory limits. There is a $500,000 self-insured retention per claim and $750,000 for
police and fire. Insurance coverage has been secured for losses in excess of the retention. Certain
governmental funds and the Enterprise Fund are charged premiums by the Internal Service Fund.

The Village is self-insured for claims arising from unemployment cases and liabilities are not material.

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage, injuries, errors and
omissions, natural disasters, and other risks in excess of self-insured amounts. These risks are covered
by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. There have been no significant
reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. Settled claims from these risks have exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in the past three years. During the prior three years, the Village settled
cases totaling $95,000, $25,500, $18,500 and $175,000 and another case for $32,500.

Claims:

The Internal Service Fund reflects workers’ compensation benefit liabilities, general liability claims and
unemployment benefit liabilities which are based upon estimates of the ultimate cost of claims
(including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported, but not settled. ‘Liabilities include
an amount for reported claims which were incurred on or before year-end but not paid. Liabilities do
include an amount for claims which were incurred on or before year-end but not reported (IBNR). The
length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved.’
Because actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal
liability and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result
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NOTE 17 — RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED):

in an exact amount. Claim liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and
statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency and
other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims
costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects
past inflation and other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. An
analysis of the activity of unpaid claim liabilities is as follows:

2015 2014
Unpaid claims at beginning of year (restated) $ 3,686,108 $ 2,994,853
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,060,347 2,442,513
Claims payments (1,115,914) (1,751,258)

Unpaid ciaims at year end $ 3,630,541 $ 3,686,108

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

A) Grants:

The Village has received grants which are subject to audit by agencies of the state and federal
governments. Such audits may result in disallowances and a request for a return of funds. Based on
- prior audits, the Village’s administration believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.

B) Litigation:

The Village is involved in lawsuits arising from the normal conduct of its affairs. Some of these
lawsuits seek damages which may be in excess of the Village’s insurance coverage. To the extent the
outcome of such litigation has been determined to result in probable loss to the Village such loss has
been accrued in the accompanying financial statements. Litigation where loss to the Village is

reasonably possible has not been accrued; however, Village management and counsel estimate such loss
to total $350,000.

The Village is also a defendant in numerous pending tax certiorari proceedings, the results of which
cannot be determined at this time. Any future refunds resulting from adverse settlements will be funded
in the year payments are made.

C) Encumbrances:

Significant encumbrances inéluded in governmental fund balances have been classified as restricted or
assigned fund balance and are as follows:

i) General Fund - Total encumbrances of the general fund as of May 31, 2015 were $313,438.
Significant encumbrances of $53,404 were assigned for vehicle purchases.

ii) Capital Projects Fund — Total encumbrances of the capital projects fund as of May 31, 2015 were
$7,882,386. Significant encumbrances of $488,614 were assigned to engineering services for public
works projects; $4,690,252 was restricted to various roadwork projects; $2,508,106 was assigned for
the purchase of trucks and snow removal equipment; $195,414 was assigned and/or restricted to
other miscellaneous projects.
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED):
D) Leases:

. Operating Leases

The Village leases various equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable leases. Rental expense for the
fiscal year was $103,475. The minimum remaining lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Amount

2016 $ 81,536
2017 67,423
2018 59.024

$.207.983

NOTE 19 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

The Village has evaluated subsequent events through October 30, 2015, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. No significant events were identified that would require
adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements.
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES-
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2015

Original (Over) Under
Budget Final Budpet _Current Year _Final Budget
REVENUES
Real property toxes $ 27,380,140 § 27,380,140 S 27,312,754 § 67,386
Other tax items 850,449 890,449 906,877 {16428)
Departmental income 4,634,000 4,815,000 4,675,783 143,217
Use of moncy & property 113,000 113,000 92,705 20,295
Licenses & permits 1,392,000 1,747,000 1,736,837 10,163
Fines & forfeiwures 1,450,000 1,450,000 1,308,450 141,510
Sale of property & compensation for loss ' 91,000 108,000 104,280 3,720
Intergovernmental charges 4,820,765 4,851,765 4,829,783 21,982
State aid 922,209 1,033,209 933,182 100,027
Federal nid 100,000 911,100 828,494 82,606
Miscellaneous 911,255 919,955 913,448 6,507
TOTAL REVENUES 42,670,818 44223618 § 431,642,633 § 580985
Approprialed reserves - 327,117
TOTAL REVENUES & APPROPRIATED
FUND BALANCE $ 42,670,818 § 44,550,735

Note to Required Supplementary Information

Budget Basis of Accounting
Budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting consistent
with accounting principles geaerally accepted in the United States of America.

Sec Paragraph on Required Supplementary Information [ncluded in Independent Auditor's Report
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Final Budget
Varisacewith
Qrigin Final Actusl Year-End Budgetary Actual
Budget Budget {Budgetary Basls) Encumbrances  and Encumbranses
EXPENDITURES .
Board trustess H {15 . 10858 S 105,48 s 3,238
Village justice 246,108 216.108 230,211 15,297
Msyor 4,128 24.126 24,126 -
Comptrafier 910,302 §62,.202 3357 § 20 2448
Clak reasurcs 1,359 659 1960822 1,022,738 25,740 784,384
Professional services 618,000 633,626 630,438 25,162 &
Purchasing [y N8 N8 71587 .
Personne 17957 17,987 16,417 1,840
Etcstions 500 300 370 130
Ceneral garsge 766,983 306421 368 18,838
D procesting 404,646 429056 406,296 1.005 22,555
Speazal stems
Municipal associations dues 10,600 10,000 8550 1,020
Judyml and claims 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,267,731 232,269
titsn partation mubitiry tac . 69.000 . £3,696 8,304
Insurance canmbution 300,000 500,000 $00.000 -
(
Palice eivilian 1,027,519 997.3719 297274 308
Police 9,585,998 10.282,632 9,665,323 104,852 512457
Street parking 108,000 196,033 196,033 -
Fire depanment 750,840 369,843 704,498 34,493 3080
Firc prevention 16,363 16,565 1373 14,292
Fire safety . 137 22,445 1,194 19.641
Saficty inspecuon 659,659 587,906 633,303 406 4,187
Auxitisry police 20,900 32,346 23,50 2518 6427
HEALTH
Reglawm of Vital Statisucs 54,669 $4,669 53476 1493
JRANSTORTATION
Street adminsstrntion 759218 171997 739.28% 419 3229
Stwees malntenance 418 256 1046672 1046672 .
Saow ¢emuoval 256,500 31627 IR 610 17
Stycet Highting 350006 550000 42,197 1003
Sidewnlks $1.000 $1,000 1364 49,636
(1] R DLV h)
Publicity 180,000 100,000 92,332 468
[ hiall 1ON
Parks 591,44 665,318 647,642 4,847 12,799
Play & Recrealion 1,644,340 1,754,840 1,691,218 45341 $5.284
MLK Center 50 296! n104 16} 9,13
Scaior Comer TN 359,070 526,667 92 L1R 31
Celcbrations 33,000 33,000 27,006 $.9%
il AL ERVIC
2aning Boarnd 39,024 Nnan 210 13
Planning Board 32,224 32924 24378 1049
Sanitary Sewers 27938 397,938 339,636 40.29% 12,950
Reluse Collection 2731,886 2, 104001 2,690 12,950
Baard of Arch Review s000 5,000 5,000 -
Starm Sewersy 120429 141,672 141,092 58S .
Emergerncy Tenant Protestion 7.500 9.290 9,290 -
A% ;
Employee benefin 18.093.500 10.712,2)6 10,702,248 1
DEBT SERVICE,
Debit Service « Interest 1,82 LIS 1,800 u
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 39,004,738 10,316,308 38,504,056 IR 1.998.514
N (] JRC
Issuance of seral bonds . . . R .
Other financing uscs - wansfers Ia other funds 3.665430 334430 3734430 - -
‘FOTAL OTUER FINANCING (SOURCES) USES 3.666330 3,133,430 3,734430 - .
TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER {(SOURCES) USES $ 32,670918 $ 44,550,733 42.220.426 & 313438 8 19988311
EXCESS OF REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) 404,147
FUND BALANCES « BEGINNING OF VEAR 4,148,195
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 3 6.552.342

TIE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCUEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CIIANGES IN FUND BALANCES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL- GENERAL FUND

FOR TUE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2015

(Continued)

Note to Required Supplemeniary Infarmation

d 1 the Umited States of

America
See Paragmph on Required Supplementary information Included in Independent Auditor's Report

67



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
MAY 31,2015

Unfunded

Liabilityas a

Actuarial Percentage of
Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Liability Liability "~ Ratio Payrol} Payroll
June 1,2010 $ 0 § 65832565 $ 65,832,565 0% $19,793,146 333%
June 1, 2012 s 0 £ 75,601,277 $ 75,601,277 0% $22,892,008 330%
June 1,2014 s 0§ 71,111,830 $ 71,111,830 0%  $24,185,039 294%

See Pamagraph on Required Supplementary Information Included in Independent Auditor’s Report
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GENERAL
FUND

The General Fund constitutes the primary operating
fund of the Village in that it includes all revenues and
expenditures not required by law to be accounted for in
other funds.
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

GENERAL FUND
MAY 31,2015 AND 2014
2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7801608 § 8,020813
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1,797,172 733,023
Taxes receivable, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts 37,864 68
Other recejvables:
Accounts, net 5,161 209
State and federal aid 104,935 38,555
Due from other governments 67,157 157,255
Due from other funds 223,645 216,250
TOTAL ASSETS : $ 10037542 § 9,166,173
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Payables
Accounts payable 5 547411 8 432,952
Accrued liabilities 1,542,162 1,674,198
Due to other goveinments 1,803 4,044
Due to retirement system 1,080,389 1,678,597
Due to other funds 29,095 7,611
Unearned revenues
Collections in advance A 161,552 137,581
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,362,412 3,934,983
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Taxes received in advance 122,788 82,995
FUND BALANCES ‘
Restricted 1,797,172 733,023
Assigned (tax certiorari) 1,399,956 1,233,690
Assigned (unappropriated) 313,438 345,144
Unassigned 3,041,776 2,836,338
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 6,552,342 5,148,195
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 10,037,542 8 9,166,173

See Parapgraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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CAPITAL PROJECTS
FUND

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds.




THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
MAY 31,2015 AND 2014

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Other receivables:
Accounts
State and federal aid
Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Payables
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Due to other funds
Notes payable
Bond anticipation notes payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Assigned
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

2015 2014
5 831,667 & 641,175
10,150,620 8,731,479
655 -
989,804 708,402
334,268 12,768

3 12,307,014

$ 10,093,824

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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$ 1,116903 § 615,427
- 90,549

11,093 15,310

- 102,000

1,127,996 §23,286
10,150,620 8,731,479
1,028,398 539,059
11,179,018 9,270,538

$ 12,307,014 § 10,093,824



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2015 AND 2014

REVENUES

State aid

County and local aid
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)
OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Issuance of serial bonds
QOperating transfers in
Operating transfers (out)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

2015 2014
$ 969,660 445,879
464,900 697,259
1,434,560 1,143,138
8,383,778 3,464,519
8,383,778 3,464,519
(6,949,218) (2,321,381)
8,760,000 7,715,000
102,000 34,000
(4,302) (3.861)
8,857,698 7,745,139
1,908,480 5,423,758
9,270,538 3,846,780
§ 11,179,018 9,270,538

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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SPECIAL REVENUE
- FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than proprietary,
expendable trusts, pension trusts or capital projects) that are
legally restricted to expenditures for certain defined purposes.
The special revenue funds of the Village are as follows:

Community Development and Section 8 Funds - The
Community Development and Section 8 Funds are used 1o
account for projects and subsidies financed by entitlements
from the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development.

Special Purpose Fund - The Special Purpose Fund is used to
account for assets held by the Village in accordance with a trust
agreement.




ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - unresiricied
Cush and cash equivalents - restricied
Receivabies:
Accounts, net:
Due (rom other governments
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable
Accrued linbillties
Due to other lunds

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCES
Rustricted
Assipned

TOTAL FUND.BALANCES

THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES _§

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor’s Report

MAY 31,2015
Special Revenue Fuads Total
Communily Section 8 Special Dcbt Non-Major
Development Housing Purpose Total Scorvice Fands
s 36611 $ 36,6011 s 36601
- $ 356,226 S 191,189 547415 $ 269,719 BI7,i34
19,146 19,146 19,146
26,579 26,579 26,579
1,698 1,698 11,093 12,788
$ 64885 § 375012 §__lot.180 S 631446 S 380812 5 913258
H 4,121 s 41 s 4,321
$ 25N 242,573 242,573
59,500 1,695 61,195 61,198
63,621 244,268 - 307.889 - 307889
130,104 191,189 323,293 280,812 603,108
1.264 1264 1264
1264 131104 91,189 _ 323.557 __ 280812 604369
64885 § 375372 § 190189  $ 631446 S 280812 S 913258
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NON MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31,2015

Special Revenue Funds Total
Community Scction 8 Special Dbt Non Major
Developmeni Housing Purpose Total Service Funils
REVENUES »
Depantmental income s 8500 § 112485 $ 120,985 S 120985
Use of money & propernty 143 482 635 S 33,113 34,738
Federal aid 147,931 2417311 1,565,232 2,565,232
Miscellaneous $ 119490 119.499 119,499
TOTAL REVENUES 156,564 2,530,278 119,499 2,806,341 34,113 2.840.454
EXPENDITURES
Econamic oppostunity )
und development 2,683,636 2,681,636 2,683,636
Culture and recreation 63,768 63,768 63,768
Home und community services 156,540 156,540 156,540
Debt service
Principal 2,895,000 2,895,000
Inlerest 767,208 767.208
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 156,540 2,681.636 63,768 2.903.944 3,662,208 6,566,153
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY)
OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 24 (153,358) 55,731 (97,603)  (3,628,098)  (3,725,698)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Premium on obligations 90,866 90,866
Operting teansfers in 3636732 _ 3.636.732
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - - - : . 3727598 _ 3,727.598
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 24 (153.358) 58,734 {97,603) 99,503 1,900
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,240 284.462 135,458 421,160 181,309 602469
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR S 1264 § 130104 § 191189 § 313557 § 280812 S 604.369

See Parageaph on Other Informotion Included in Independent Auditor’s Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

MAY 31,2015 AND 2014
2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 8 36,611 5 59,538
Receivables: ' '
‘Due from other governments 26,579 13,747
Due from other funds : : 1,695 1,695
TOTAL ASSETS $ 64,885 b 74,980
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable b3 4,121 3 5,922
Due to other funds 59,500 67,818
TOTAL LIABILITIES 63,621 73,740
FUND BALANCES
Assigned _ 1,264 1,240
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,264 1,240
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 64,885 $ 74,980

See Paragraph on Other Information included in Independent Auditor’s Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

COM PARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

REVENUES

Departmental income $ 8,500 30,180

Use of money & property 143 37

Federal aid 147,921 298,111
TOTAL REVENUES 156,564 328,328
EXPENDITURES

Home and community service 156,540 331,407
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 24 (3,079)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,240 4,319
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR $ 1,264 1,240

Sce Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
SECTION 8 HOUSING FUND
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Receivables:
Accounts, net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

"~ TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

2015 2014
$ 356226 S 494,967
19,146 3,280
§ 375372 5 498247
$ - 3 232
242,573 211,858
1,695 1,695
244,268 213,785
131,104 284,462
131,104 284,462
§ 375372 S 498247

Sce Paragraph on Other Information !r;cludcd in Independent Auditor's Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SECTION 8 HOUSING FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2015 AND 2014
2015 2014

REVENUES .

Departmental income $ 112,485 $ 29,298

Use of maney & property ' 482 500

Federal aid 2417,311 2,588,367
TOTAL REVENUES 2,530,278 2,678,165
EXPENDITURES

Economic opportunity ‘

and devclopment 2,683,636 2,901,827

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - {153,358) (223,662)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR - 284,462 508,124
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR S 131,104 $ 284,462

See Paragraph on Other information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted

TOTAL ASSETS

FUND BALANCES
Restricted

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

See Parograph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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2015 2014
8 191,189 $ 135,458
$ 191,189 b 135,458
$ 191,189 $ 135,458
191,189 135,458
$ 191,189 $

135,458



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL PURPOSE FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

REVENUES

Miscellaneous $ 119,499 $ 87.889
EXPENDITURES .

Culture and recreation 63,768 27,938
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) ‘

OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 55,731 59.95.1

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING OF YEAR 135.458 73.307
FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR s 191,189 3 135,458

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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DEBT SERVICE
FUND

The Debt Service Fund is provided to account for the
accumulation of resources to be used for
redemption of principal and interest on general long-

termn debt.

the




THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DEBT SERVICE FUND
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 3 269,719 8 . 166,522
Receivables: T
Due from other funds 11,093 14,787
TOTAL ASSETS $ 280,812 $ 181,309
FUND BALANCES
Restricted § 280,812 $ 181,309
TOTAL FUND BALANCES $ 280,812 $ 181,309

Sce Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independemt Audilor's Repont
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ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private enterprises or where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is necessary for
management accountability. Enterprise funds are used to account for
those operations that provide services to the public. The operations of
the Electric Utility and Water Fund are recorded as enterprise funds.




THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Accounts, net
Due from other funds
Inventories
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
. bLand
Construction-in-progress
Buildings and equipment

Less - Accumulated depreciation
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Collections in advance :
Due to employees’ retirement system
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums
Compensated absences
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums
Compensated absences

Net other post-employment benefit obligations

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

2015 2014
3,865,398  § 4,281,234
1,844,507 1,944,132
16,728 2,267
289,707 308,480
6,016,340 6,536,113
327,271 327,271
4,482,303 2,213,056
32,384,715 30,682,239
37,194,289 33,222,566

(10,708,134)  (10,087,312)

26,486,155 23,135,254
32,502,495 29,671,367
86,643 103,971
1,173,199 211,733
13,797 13,853
110,472 110,648
24,662 45,428
25,032 21,902
44,436 44,718
22,155 25,509
1,461,834 1,243,298
9,687 9,932
2,885,274 1,727,021
11,072,440 9,807,049
377,774 387,352
374,739 504,252
12,024,973 10,698,653
14,910,247 12,425,674
14,038,524 12,188,878
3,640,367 5,160,786

TN

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor’s Report

- $17,349,664



THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
. ENTERPRISE FUND - WATER FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services :
Metered sales $  4,440.216 S 4,621,079
Penalty income 121,727 140,475
Miscellancous 18,083 16,708
Total operating revenucs 4,580,026 4,778,262
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power , 201,601 173,354
Depreciation 698,299 690,845
Maintenance 374,158 357,387
Interfund charges 751,627 882,902
Transmission and distsibution 771,242 902,850
General and administrative 1,172,542 1,148,439
Employee benefits 470,284 554,646
Insurance 75,000 88,235
Tolal operating expenscs ‘ 4,514,753 4,798,658
Operating income (loss) » : 65,273 {20,396)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Rental income 519,941 529,826
Interest income 56,651 47,333
interest expense {312,638) . (330,956)
Total non-operating revenucs (expenses) : 263,954 246,203
CHANGE IN NET POSITION ' 329,227 225,807
TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,349,664 17,123,857
TOTAL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 17,678,891 $ 17,349,664

Sec Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent’ Auditor’s Report
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERFRISE FUND - WATER FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2015 AND 2014

2015 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Revenue collecied:

Cash received from charges for services § 4,682,499 $ 4,901,526
Paymenis for expenses

Cash payments to other suppliers of goods or services (1,741,001} (2,845,173)

Cash payments (o employees for services and related expenses (1,037,940} (896,057)

. Intema) activity-payments (to) from other [unds for expense reimbursements (35,227) 42,717

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,868,331 1,203,013
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of capital mssets (4,049,200) (2,481,119)

Proceeds from capital debt 2,724,872 424,872

Principal paid on capita) debt (1,216,073) (1,279,372)

Interest paid on capital debt (320,358) (390,599)

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities {2.860.759) {3,726.218)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest and rental income 576,592 577,159

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activitics 576,592 577,159

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (415,836) (1,946,046)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 4,281,234 _  6,227.280

Cush nnd Cash Equivalents at End of Year $  3.865398 S 4,281,234

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss) S 65,273 s (20,396)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense : 698,299 690,845
Decrease (increase) in: '
Accounts receivable 99,625 123,164
Due from other funds (14,461) 22,141
Inventory 18,773 8,195
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable - ' 961,466 160,091
Accrued liabilities (56) 1,912
Due 1o other funds (20,766) 20,576
Customer deposits 3,130 100
Collections in advance {282) -
Due to employees' retirement system (3,354) 1,769
Compensated absences {9,823) 66,047
Other post-employment benefit obligations payable 70,507 128,569
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 1,868.331 $ 1203013

See Paragraph on Other Information Inciuded in Independent Auditor’s Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Accounts, net
State and federal aid receivable
Due from other funds
Inventorles
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Land
Construction-in-progress
Buildings and equipment

Less - Accumulated depreciation
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Due to other funds
Customer deposits
Collections in advance
Due to employees' retirement system
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums
Compensated absences
Total Current Liabilitics
Non-Current Liabilitics
Bonds payable, inclusive of premiums
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit obligations payable
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

2015

2014

$ 8,765,885

$ 4,953,979

3,326,105 4,010,218
- 46,230
24,542 41,311
2,550,600 2,751,495
14,667,132 11,803,233
48,614 48,614
4,612,233 3,505,957
59,882,137 58,100,703
64,542,984 61,655,274
(31,977,788) (30,837,206)
32,565,196 30,818,068
47,232,328 42,621,301
195,068 214,575
3,802,888 2,249,116
88,776 80,286
141,345 134,674
27,187 28,610
1,451,224 1,504,932
69,196 -
144,394 153,742
1,235,280 1,013,308
64,842 68,718
7,025,132 5,233,386
9,860,532 8,064,765
2,528,849 2,680,010
3,465,794 2,993,381
15,855,175 13,738,156
22,880,307 18,971,542
21,664,452 21,954,570
2,882,637 1,909,764

5 24,547,089

$ 23,864,334
IEEEDES

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Metered sales
Miscellancous
Total operating revenucs

OPERATING EXPENSES

Purchased power

Depreciation

Maintenance

Interfund charges

Production

Transmission and distribution -

Street lighting

General and administrative

Employec benefits

Insurance

Customer deposit interest
Total operating expenses

Operating income
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest cxpense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

TOTAL NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

2015 2014
$ 24,798,043 $ 27,133,374
152,706 110,550
34,950,749 27,243,924
11,476,806 12,215,145
1,496,099 1,466,065
14,229 32,328
3,313,174 3,721,056
2,114,815 2,118,964
1,122,874 1,132,479
260,440 329,082
1,176,395 1,225,768
2,761,516 3,378,002
258,333 391,841
9,841 8,680
24,004,522 26,019,500
946,227 1,224,424
44,375 38,197
(307,847) (328,023)
(263 .472) (289,826)
682,755 934,598
23,864,334 22,929,736
'$ 24,547,089 $ 23,864,334

See Paragraph on Other Information ln&luded in Independent Auditor's Report
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ENTERPRISE FUND - ELECTRIC FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2015 AND 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Revenue collected:
Cash received from charges for services
Payments for expenses
Cash payments to other suppliers of goods or services
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses
Cash payments to customers on deposit interest
Intemal activity-payments from (to) other funds for expense reimbursements
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
{nterest paid on capital debt
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activitics

"CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and rental income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconeile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Decrease (Increase) in:
Accounts receivable
State and federal aid receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expense
Inventory
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Customer depaosits
Collections in advance
Due to employees' retirement system
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefit obligations payable

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

2018

2014

$ 25,696,580

-& 28,808,006

(15,227,739) (19,436,517)
(5,199,658) (5,657.213)
(9,841) (7,192)
15,346 (21,432)
5,774,688 3,685.652
(3,243,227) (1,117,654)
2,970,687 33,041
(982,261) (1,019,041)
(252,356) (365,602)
(1,507,157) (2:469.256)
44,375 38,197
44,375 38,197
3,811,906 1,254,593
4,953,979 3,699,386

$ 8,765,885

$ 4953979

§ 946227 § 1,2244%4
1,496,099 1,466,065
684,113 66,958
46,230 1,278,561
16,769 (13,194)

- 55,749
200,895 (218,968)
1,553,772 (867,262)
- 8,490 (3,847)
(1,423) (8,238)
(53,708) 218,563
69,196 .
(9,348) (17,375)
(155,037) (90,386)
472,413 594,602
$ 5274688 $ 3,685,652

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor’s Report
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INTERNAL
SERVICE FUNDS

Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other
departments or agencies of the- government, or to other governments, on a cost
reimbursement basis. The Village has established its risk management activities
for general liability, workers' compensation and unemployment benefits in an
internal service fund.
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - RISK RETENTION FUND

MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $ 3,378,439 ¥ 3,499,028
Accounts receivable, net 137,250 100,560
Prepaid expenses - 253,459 157,531
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,769,148 5 3,757,119
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities ‘
Accounts payable 5 138,607 3 71,011
Claims payable 1,631,375 1,769,502
Total Current Liabilitics 1,769,982 1,840,513
Non-Current Liabilitics .
Claims payable 1,999,166 1,916,606
Total Non-Current Liabilitics 1,999,166 1,916,606
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 3,769,148 $ 3,757,119

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - RISK RETENTION FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2015 AND 2014

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Risk management
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
Employee benefits '
Insurance
Judgments and claims

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
NON-QPERATING INCOME
Interest income
Total non-operating income
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
TOTAL NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICIT)- END OF YEAR

2015 2014
$ 2,108,119 § 2.7236,968
2,108,119 2,236,968
441,624 317,924
866,692 991,728
198,858 177,826
610,034 759,530
2,117,208 2,247,008

(9.089) (10,040)

9,089 10,040
9,089 10,040

Sce Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Repart
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INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - RISK RETENTION FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Revenue collected:
Cash received from charges for services
Cash received from insurance recoveries
Payments for expenses
Cash payments to insurance carriers and claimants
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses
Internal activity-payments (to) from other funds for expense reimbursements
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and rental income
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments 1o reconciie operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities: '
Change in operating assets and linbilities:
Decrease (Increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Due fram other funds
Prepaid expenses
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Claims payable

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

2015 2014
$ 2008119 § 2,236,968
(36,690) 10,396
(1,334,415) (632,935)
(866,692) (991,728)
- (12,524)
(129,678) 610,177
9,089 10,040
9,089 10,040
(120,589) 620,217
3,499,028 2,878,811
$ 3378439 §  3,499028
5 (9,089) §  (10,040)
(36,690) 10,396
. 316
(95,928) (20,094)
67,596 (48,816)
. (12,840)
(55,567) 691,255
$  (129678) § 610177

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor’s Report
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FIDUCIARY
FUND

The Fidﬁciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the
Village in a trustee or custodial capacity.




THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

AGENCY FUND '
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014

ASSETS

Cash $ 591,047 $ 571,669

Accounts receivable 23,187 2,755
TOTAL ASSETS $ 614234 $ 574424
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3 17,790 % 11,466

Due to governmental funds 124,470 109,838

Deposits 71,222 93,382

Other liabilities 400,752 359,738
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 614,234 $ 574424

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor’s Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
_ AGENCY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2015

Balance Balance
June 1, May 31,
2014 Increases Decreases 2018
ASSETS
Cash $ 571,669 $ 17,927,265 $ 17,907,887 $ 591,047
Accounts receivable 2,755 23,187 2,755 23,187
TOTAL ASSETS $ 574,424 $ 17,950,452 $ 17,910,642 $ 614,234
] E . ]
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and due
to governmental funds $ 121,304 s 142,260 $ 121,304 $ 142,260
Deposits and liabilities 453,120 8,112,660 8,093,806 471,974
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 574,424 $ 8,254,920 $ 8215110 $ 614,234
- ——————3 =

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

PENSION TRUST FUND
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014
ASSETS _
Investments, mutual funds, at fair value $ 3,665,566 $ 3,192,832
. TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,665,566 $ 3,192,832
TOTAL LIABILITIES : - -
NET POSITION ,
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 3,665,566 $ 3,192,832

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independem Auditor’s Report
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THE INCORPORATED VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

: PENSION TRUST FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014

ADDITIONS

Pension contributions s 235,900 $ -

Interest and net change in fair value of investments 286,075 376,014
TOTAL ADDITIONS 521,975 376,014
DEDUCTIONS

Pension benefits 49,241 65,276 -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 49,241 - 65,276
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 472,734 310,738
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,192,832 2,882,094
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 3,665,566 $ 3,192,832

See Paragraph on Other Information Included in Independent Auditor's Report
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Financial Trends

‘hese schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Village's

nancial performance and well-being have changed over time. These schedules include:

Net Assets by Component
Changes in Net Assets
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Governmental Activities
Net Position

Business - Type Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Business - Type Activities
Net Position

Primary Government:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Primary Government
Net Position

2006 2007 2008 2009
12,522,151  § 13,061,584 $ 14,242,455 $ 14,400,331
1,195,054 1,338,727 1,572,930 1,047,130
(10,307,961) (11,458,546) (12,070,548) (16,142,349)
3,409,244 § 2,941,765  § 3,744837 $ (694,888)
25,408,433 $ 28,150,791 $ 30,429,351 $ 30,313,082
10,496,832 8,996,162 8,030,494 8,348,216
35,905,265 $ 37,146,953 $ 38459845 § 38,661,278
37,930,584 § 41,212,375 $ 44671806 . $ 44,713,393
1,195,054 1,338,727 1,672,830 1,047,130
188,871 (2,462,384) (4,040,054) (7,794,133)
39,314,509 $ 40,088,718 $§ 42,204,682 $ 37,966,390
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

15674718 -~ $ 16481875 $ 17285645 $ 19,807,710 $ 20,330,836 § 22,233,324
834,391 1,148,224 2,935,619 6,396,110 1,633,122 2,880,887
(17,735,372) (20,551,554) (24,888,529) (34,326,281) (32,775,856) (36,245,164)
(1226,263) $ (2,921455) $ (4,667,265) $ (8,122.461) $ (10,811,898) $ (11,130,953)
31,347,392  $§ 29196964 $ 33,080,493 $ 30,840,007 $ 34,143,448 $ 35,702,976
6,502,072 9,576,994 5,042,632 9,213,586 7,070,550 6,523,004
37,849464 $ 38773958 $ 38,123,125 $ 40,053,593 $ 41,213,998 $ 42,225,980
47,022,110 $ 45678839 $ 50,366,138 $ 50,647,717 $ 54,474284 $ 57,936,300
834,391 1,148,224 2,935,619 6,396,110 1,633,122 2,880,887
(11,233,300) (10,974,560) (19,845,897) (25,112,695) (25,705,306) (29,722,160)
36,623,201 $ 35852503 $ 33455860 $ 31,931,132 $ 30,402,100 $ 31,095,027
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Expenses
Governmental Activities:
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity
and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community
services
Interest

Total Governmental Activities
Expenses

Business-type Activities -
Water Fund
Electric Fund

Total Business-type Activities Expenses

Total Primary Government
Expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Charges for Services
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity
and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community
services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Total Governmental Activities
Program Revenues

Business-type Activities -
Charges for Services -
Water Fund
Electric Fund

Total Business-type of Activities Charges for Services

Total Primary Government
Program Revenues

Net Expense/Revenue:
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government
Net Expense

2006 2007 ° 2008 2009
i

$ 6,505,133 $ 7,963,945 § $6,584,854 § 8,201,471
12,190,338 12,217,770 13,003,151 15,426,692~
93,397 91,837 99,943 101,518

3,877,195 4,055,973 3,823,541 4,733,194
2,575,808 2,549,911 2,781,369 3,155,903
4,074,521 3,870,521 © 3,712,100 4,366,688
889,888 1,262,239 805,896 1,174,858

677,650 720,974 781,711 724,785
30,883,930 32,733,170 31,592,565 37,885,109
3,727,690 3,977,764 4,052,408 4,052,818
24,436,286 22,430,800 23,824,975 24,752,407
28,163,976 26,408,564 27,877,383 28,795,225

$ 59,047,906 $ 59,141,734 59,469,948 $ 66,680,334

670,687 701,886 771,605 734,960

2,623,097 3,143,732 3,154,058 3,219,049

— 15,142 51,487 27,592

1,617,873 1,596,022 1,571,669 1,701,582

1,571,484 © 1,270,664 1,082,212 1,056,733

3,138,615 3,507,548 3,596,159 3,608,338

365,946 440,308 629,732 435,586

9,987,702 10,675,302 10,856,922 10,783,840

3,758,036 3,895,700 4,283,067 4,470,886

25,677,550 23,127,102 24,410,566 24,093,246

29,435,586 27,022,802 28,693,633 28,564,132

$ 39,423,288 $ 37,698,104 3 39,550,555 $ 39,347,972
(20,896,228) (22,057,868} (20,735,643) (27,101,269)
1,271,610 614,238 816,250 (231,093)

$ (19,624,618) $§  (21,443630) $  (19,919,393) § (27,332,362)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$ 8,314,641 $ 8,469,161 § 8,539,937 8,654,213 $ 8,213,879 $ 8,316,220 °
16,243,134 16,610,286 19,936,129 . 20,986,818 20,949,004 21,259,003
108,102 120,511 131,384 137,754 143,514 56,349
4,276,234 4,753,629 4,343,416 5,132,651 5,497,651 5,286,167
3,279,755 3,113,874 3,207,824 3,070,759 3,022,159 2,803,056
4,215,099 4,487,166 4,631,510 5,267,127 5,199,941 4,888,405
4,753,334 5,268,994 5,130,168 5,349,326 5,229,599 4,940,809
704,635 707,013 693,479 549,733 661,191 686,693
41,894,934 43,530,634 46,613,847 49,148,381 48,916,938 48,236,702
4,217,932 4,355,918 4,405,219 4,596,175 5,129,614 4,827,391
20,474,953 23,341,173 23,737,808 25,717,510 26,347,523 24,312,369
24,692,385 27,697,001 28,143,027 30,313,685 31,477,137 29,139,760

$ 66587819 $ 71227725 $ 74756874 $  79462,066 $ 80,394,075 $ 77,376,462
5,621,278 5,325,857 5,652,857 5,782,301 5,799,955 5,308,143
3,059,124 3,631,549 3,662,888 3,806,803 3,722,235 3,792,973

— — — — — 69,230

48,319 102,095 132,799 99,441 89,298 112,485

1,729,606 1,868,402 1,845,790 1,884,258 1,988,695 1,928,304
2,435,550 991,358 1,105,308 1,148,909 1,370,807 1,575,273
3,842,428 3,980,358 3,433,207 3,636,438 3,300,654 3,669,389
812,417 234,603 2,866,480 1,494,411 1,143138 1,434,560
17,548,722 16,134,222 18,699,329 17,852,561 17,414,782 17,890,357
4,876,652 5,497,100 5,253,542 . 5,407,306 5,308,088 5,099,967
18,599,062 22,932,822 22,356,874 26,117,999 - 27,243,924 24,950,749

~ 23,475,714 28,429,922 27,610,416 31,525,305 32,552,012 30,050,716

$ 41024436 $ _ 44564144 $ 46309745 $ 49,377,866 $ 49,966,794 $ 47,941,073
(24,346,212) (27,396,412) (27,914,518) (31,295,820) (31,502,156) (30,346,345)
(1,217,171) 732,831 (532,611) 1,211,620 1,074,875 910,956

$  (25563,2383) $  (26663,581) $  (28447,129) $  (30,084200) $  (30,427,281) $  (29,435,389)
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Revenues
Governmental Activities:
Taxes
Real Property Taxes
Other Tax ltems
Non-property Taxes
Unrestricted Use of Money
and Property
Unrestricted State and Federal Aid
Miscellaneous

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:
Unrestricted Use of Money
and Property
Rental Income
Total Business Type Activities
Total Primary Government
General Revenues

Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities
Business-type Activities

Prior Period Adjustment

Total Primary Government

$

$

$

$

2006 2007 2008 2009
17,420,117 $ 18,233,871 19,043,540 20,805,457
354,970 373,996 438,878 463,657
85,401 68,320 68,320 —
236,727 315,715 271,532 92,916
1,742,774 1,718,605 1,406,881 978,686
479,607 879,882 309,564 320,828
20,319,596 $ 21,590,389 21,538,715 22,661,544
283,261 627,450 496,642 432,526
283,261 627,450 496,642 432,526
20,602,857 $ 22,217,839 22,035,357 23,094,070
(576,632) (467,479) 803,072 (4,439,725)
1,554,871 1,241,688 1,312,892 201,433
978,239 $ 774,209 2,115,964 (4,238,292)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
21,747,928 ' $  23,093713 ' 23,847,540 25,318,497 $ 26,129,571 § 27,312,754
584,191 538,026 604,914 685,808 811,969 906,877
79,105 119,808 92,407 89,834 99,526 82,143
944,179 813,340 732,897 789,228 812,711 761,799
459,434 1,136,333 890,950 957,257 884,690 963,717
23,814,837 § 25701220 26,168,708 27,840,624 $ 28,738,467 $ 30,027,290
405,357 191,663 47,321 48,616 85,530 101,026
405,357 191,663 47321 48,616 85,530 101,026
24220194 $  25892,883 26,216,029 27,889,240 $ 28,823,997 $ 30,128,316
(531,375) (1,695,192) (1,745,810) (3,455,196) (2,763,689) (319,055)
(811,814) 924,494 (485,290) 1,260,236 1,160,405 1,011,982

— — (165,543) 670,232 74,252 —
(1,343,189) § (770,698) (2,396,643) (1,524,728) $ (1,529,032) $ 692,927
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2006 2007 2008 2009
General Fund ' . :
Reserved $ 1,186,503 $ 910,398 $ 596,372 636,105
Unreserved 2,283,475 2,017,941 1,088,902 1,131,515
Assigned - — — —
Unassigned - - - —
Restricted — — — —
Total General Fund - $ 3,469,978 3 2,928,339 $ 1,685,274 1,767,620
All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved $ 1,391,156 $ 337,458 $ 206,211 177,427
Unreserved, Reported In: 4 _
Special Revenue Funds 195,452 232,291 497,764 218,739
Capital Projects Fund 1,374,034 876,351 2,666,590 2,559,896
- Debt Service Fund 50,000 50,403 25,000 — '
Assigned — - —_— —
Restricted Reported In:
Special Revenue Funds - — — -
Capital Projects Fund - — - -
Debt Service Fund — — — —
Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 3,010,642 $ 1,496,503 $ 3,395,565 §$ 2,956,062
Total Governmental Funds $ 6,480,620 $ 4,424,842 $ 5,080,839 $ 4,723,682

Note: Fund Balances during 2006 through 2011 were recorded as reserved and unreserved
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
711,674 1,136,187 - $ - $ - 3 —
1,415,924 1,553,686 - - - -
- — 584,063 1,328,742 1,578,834 1,713,394
- — 1,696,419 2,002,984 2,836,338 3,041,776
- — 904,512 1,124,875 733,023 1,797,172
2,127,598 2,689,873 3,184,994 $ 4,456,601 § 5148,195 § 6,552,342
2,015,689 2,531,161 i $ — $ - $ -
485,507 776,384 — — — —
3,611,437 4,063,179 — — — -
- - 985,233 757,145 540,299 1,029,662
- - 638,554 583,631 419,920 322,293
i — 4,089,951 4,481,923 8,731,479 10,150,620
— - 121,553 205,681 181,309 280,812
6,112,633 7,370,724 5835291 $ 6,028,380 % 9,873,007 § 11,783,387
8,240,231 10,060,597 9,020,285 $ 10,484,981 $% 15,021,202 § 18,335,729
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Revenues
Real property taxes
Other tax items
Non-property taxes
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and

compensation for loss

Intergovernmental charges
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
~ Home and community services
Employee benefits
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Refunding bond issuance costs
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditufes

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Refunding bonds issued
Issuance premium
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Bonds issued
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources
Change in Accounting Principle

Net Change in Fund Balances

Debt Service as a Percentage
of Non-Capital Expenditures

2009

2006 2007 2008 2010
17,420,117 18,233,871 19,043,540 § 20,805,457 § 21,747,928
354,970 373,996 438,878 463,657 584,191
85,401 68,320 68,320 - -
3,869,036 4,093,251 4,271,160 4,487,246 4,488,947
337,211 475,846 447,309 180,724 173,479
1,388,949 1,050,501 867,043 799,061 2,349,592
1,189,956 1,543,494 1,453,778 1,420,259 1,253,500
31,497 182,092 136,216 90,072 164,645
3,780,243 3,848,915 4,112,448 4,519,876 4,805,538
2,118,952 2,215,655 2,128,477 1,561,083 1,558,659
2,905,288 2,976,889 3,220,040 3,303,865 3,670,285
319,770 671,996 320,876 333,960 606,795
33,801,390 35,734,826 36,508,085 37,965,260 41,363,559
4,973,309 5,824,961 5,763,173 5,736,956 6,558,335
8,867,771 9,268,067 9,520,951 9,654,708 11,363,108
43,160 44,506 46,924 47,559 50,742
2,152,789 2,171,955 2,179,317 2,309,386 2,172,396
87,401 2,549,911 2,781,369 3,131,708 3,254,368
3,152,985 2,998,696 3,270,111 3,009,600 3,056,151
6,404,592 4,201,873 4,021,904 4,379,635 3,554,164
6,183,603 6,281,027 6,515,284 6,911,321 7,173,551
1,770,600 1,706,800 1,844,000 2,153,100 2,170,000
677,667 657,235 739,026 859,823 665,688
- - - 35,566 -
3,713,291 13,201,012 3,887,759 953,621 2,123,507
38,027,168 38,906,043 40,569,818 39,182,983 42,142,010
(4,225,778) (3,171,217) (4,061,733) (1,217,723) (778,451)
- - - 2,256,000 -
- - - 68,660 -
- - - (2,289,094) -
2,170,000 3,240,000 4,720,000 825,000 4,295,000
2,402,091 2,318,862 2,334,035 3,255,340 2,855,388
(2,402,091) (2,318,862) (2,334,035) (3,255,340) (2,855,388)
2,170,000 3,240,000 4,720,000 860,566 4,295,000
(2,055,778) 68,783 658,267 §$ (357,157) % 3,516,549
7.2% 6.7% 7.2% 8.1% 7.1%
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

23,083,713 $ 23,847,540 $ 25,318,487 § © 26,129,571 $ 27,312,754

538,026 604,914 685,808 811,969 906,877
4,276,902 4,318,266 4,557,897 4,739,471 4,796,768
182,174 138,278 185,462 145,876 127,443
970,761 1,290,007 1,310,731 1,557,488 1,736,837
1,562,159 1,569,642 1,483,819 1,299,847 1,308,490
172,362 107,023 84,858 77,282 104,280
5,048,939 5,170,758 5,324,065 5,327,832 4,829,783
1,181,483 2,252,653 1,201,134 " 1,367,590 1,902,842
3,672,590 3,218,760 3,416,372 3,114,372 3,393,726
1,136,333 2,350,196 2,174,339 1,581,949 1,497 847
41,835,442 44,868,037 45,742,982 46,153,247 47,917,647
6,299,867 5,868,186 5,654,447 5,344,680 6,079,330
10,702,894 11,550,625 11,836,117 12,503,350 12,435,766
50753 . 51,366 51,526 53,009 - 53,176
2,458,711 1,007,273 2,293,896 2,636,430 2,708,131
3,092,970 3,184,890 3,045,501 2,985,922 2,776,168
2,985,124 2,912,334 3,331,478 3,383,754 3,203,339
3,893,474 3,621,599 3,662,676 3,658,882 3,438,064
7,979,192 9,368,991 10,192,435 11,101,839 10,712,215
2,504,000 2,587,000 2,336,000 2,459,500 2,895,000
697,976 712,355 516,601 605,980 769,019
3,065,115 4,143,730 3,837,609 3,464,519 8,383,778
43,730,076 45,908,349 46,758,286 48,197,865 53,453,986
(1,894,634) (1,040,312) (1,015,304) (2,044,618) (5,536,339)
- - 7,157,310 - -

- - - 33,808 90,866

- - . (7.157,310) - -
3,715,000 - 2,480,000 7,935,000 8,760,000
3,204,502 3,199,935 2,894,798 3,000,907 3,738,732
(3,204,502) (3,199,935) (2,894,798) (3,000,907) (3,738,732)
3,715,000 . _ 2,480,000 7,968,808 8,850,866
1,820366 $  (1,040312) § 1,464 696 $ 5,924,190 $ 3,314,527

8.0% 7.9% 6.6% 6.9% - 81%
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Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village's most significant
local revenue source, the property tax. These schedules include:

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value
of Taxable Property

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates,
Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation

Principal Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPER

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

,

Commercial, Large

Total Taxable

Fiscal Residential Multi-Family & -Special Assessed

"Year Property Vacant [L.and Franchise Value

2006 ~$ 46,499,355 $ 18,418,046 $ 853,729 65,771,130
2007 46,888,237 17,988,924 819,272 65,696,433
2008 46,382,066 17,998,290 828,320 65,208,676
2009 46,602,548 16,407,531 785,726 63,795,805
2010 46,636;165 15,996,175 775,545 63,407,885
2011 46,385,821 15,120,687 744,655 62,251,163
2012 46,218,874 14,210,370 776,729 61,205,973
2013 46,184,170 13,496,877 784,391 60,465,438
2014 46,172,433 13,042,224 763,692 59,978,349
2015 46,233,130 12,682,680 787,941 59,703,751

Note: Estimated actual taxable value is calculated by dividing taxable
assessed value by the state special equilization rate. Tax rates are

per $1,000 of assessed value.
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State Estimated

Special Actual Direct Tax Rate
Equalization Taxable Village

Rate (2) Value Rate Total
163 % $  4,035,038,650 3 267.8000 3 267.8000
1.55 4,238,479,548 282.8000 | 282.8000
1.38 4,725,266,377 299.5000 | 299.5000
1.27 5,023,291,732 329.2000 329.2000
1.24 | 5,113,539,113 348.6000 348.6000
1.24 5,020,255‘,081 . 376.3000 376.3000
1.42 4,310,279,789 ' 394.7000 394.7000
1.41 4,288,328,936 421.4000 421.4000
1.48 4,052,591,149 439.1000 | 439.1000
1.53 .3,902,205,948 458.6000 458.6000
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES,
PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Overlapping Rates

Note : Property tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed value.
(1) The Village utilizes a single tax rate

(2) Class one rates

Source: Comptroller's Office
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Fiscal [-)ricr):izlt -Nassau Town of School & Library
Year Rate (1) County(2) Hempstead(2) District(2)
2006 $ 267.8000 482.2400 $ 30.6800 3 2,918.0300
2007 282.8000 847.3000 52.3900 5,369.8400
2008 299.5000 819.0300 49.5900 5,356.3600
2009 329.2000 826.1800 49.5900 5,424.3800
2010 348.6000 840.1700 49,5900 5,625.6400
2011 376.3000 963.7200 58.5400 6,839.0700
- 2012 394.7000 - 1,006.4800 61.6500 7,571.3100
2013 421.4000 1,127.1100 91.4100 8,377.7300
2014 439.1000 1,236.7100 128.1200 9,119.7400
2015 458.6000 1,275.3100 169.3500 9,636.5000



VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
MAY 31, 2015 AND 2006

2015
Percent of
Net Taxable
) Assessed Assessed
Rank Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation
1 National Grid Utility $ 846,288 142 %
2 Public Storage Inc Manufacturing 336,019 0.56
3 100 Merrick Rd. LLC Office Building 250,291 0.42
4 Rockville Centre Associates Professional Building 240,000 0.40
5 Centro Heritage Shopping Center 160,872 0.27
6 HCRI NY-NJ Properties Professional Building 160,000 0.27
7 MJER 2000 Hotel 156,830 0.26
8 Eldan Office Building 155,448 0.26
9 Rockville Centre Medical Professional Building 155,000 0.26
10 Sunoce Properties Shopping Center 154,284 0.26
Total $ 2,615,032 - 438 %
2006
Percent of
Net Taxable
Assessed Assessed
Rank Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation “Valuation
1 Keyspan -Public Service $ 631,378 0.96 %
2 Halandia Associates Apértments 480,460 0.73
3 Darby Group Co., Inc. Manufacturing 401,560 0.61
4 RC Land - Maplepoint Apartments 368,155 0.56
5 Rockvilie Centre Assoc. Professional Building 359,937 0.55
6 100 Merrick Rd. LLC. Office Building 349,905 0.53
7 Land Enterprises Motel-Holiday Inn 328,666 0.50
8 ‘King Kullen Grocery Supermarket 317,973 0.48
9 Verizon ' Telephone Utility 285,986 0.43
10 Storage Quarters, Inc. Storage Facility 264,091 - 0.40
Total $ 3,788,111 575 %

Source: Village of Rockville Centre 2006 and 2015 Assessment Roll.
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Taxes Levied

Collected within the
Fiscal Year of the Levy

Collections.

Total Collections to Date

Fiscal forthe Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year Fiscal Year (1) Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2006 $ 17,791,040 $ 17,791,040 (2) 100.00 % — $17,791,040 100.00 %
2007 | 18,761,630 18,761,630 100.00 — 18,761,630 100.00
2008 19,761,301 19,761,196 99.99 — 19,761,196 99.99
2009 21,178,851 21,178,670 99.99 — 21,178,670 99.99
2010 22,231,806 22,231,123 99.99 —_— 22,231,123 99.99
2011 23,601,467 2_3,600,863 99.99 — 23,600,863 99.99
2012 24,350,190 24,338,106 99.95 — 24,338,106 99.95
2013 25,722,823 25,721,926 99.99 — 25,721,926 99.99
2014 26,530,768 26,529,866 99.99 — 26,529,866 99.99
2015 - 27,604,544 27,602,933 99.99 —_ 27,602,933 99.99

(1) Real Estate Taxes include water rents, sewer rents, cancellation of veterans and senior exemptions, sidewalk
and curb, and emergency tenant protection.

(2) Not adjusted for tax certiorari refunds

Source: Comptroller's Office
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Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Village's
current levels of outstanding debt and the Village's ability to issue additional debt in the future.
These schedules include:

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Legal Debt Margin Information
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Governmental Activities

General Less Debt

Fiscal Obligation Service Funds

Year Bonds Available Net
2006 $ 15,013,800 $ 143,565 $ 14,870,235
2007 16,547,000 221,161 16,325,839
2008 ’ 19,423,000 106,682 19,316,318
2009 18,130,500 56,388 18,074,112
2010 . 20,255,500 133,159 20,122,341
2011 21,466,500 188,294 21,278,206
2012 18,879,500 121,553 18,757,947
2013 18,784,500 205,681 18,578,819
2014 24,260,000 181,309 24,078,691
2015 30,125,000 280,812 29,844,188

(1) - Population and perscnal income data can be found in the schedule of demographic and
economic statistics

(2) - General obligation bond amounts excludes premium amount that totalled $771,575
in Govermental Activities and $665,086 in Business-Type Activities during Fiscal Year 2015

Note: Details regarding the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements
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Business-Type Activities

Percentage of

General Total Primary Actual Taxable Percentage of
Obligation Government General Value of Personal Per

Bonds Obligation Bonds Property Income (1) Capita (1)
16,391,200 ‘ $ 31,405,000 0.77 % 314 % $ 1,278.29
16,458,000 33,005,000 0.77 A 3.30 1,343.41
16,927,000 36,350,000 0.77 3.63 1,479.57
17,309,500 35,440,000 0.71 3.54 1,442.53
17,819,500 38,075,000 0.74 3.80 1,549.78
19,508,500 | 40,975,000 0.82 4.09 1,667.82
17,645,500 - 36,525,000 0.85 2.85 1,520.42
21,305,500 40,090,000 0.93 3.12 1,668.82
19,465,000 43,725,000 1.08 3.41 1,820.13

22,965,000 53,090,000 1.36 414 2,209.97
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

MAY 31, 2015

Percentage - Amount

Applicable Applicable

Net to to

Government Unit . Indebtedness Rockyville Centre Rockville Centre
County of Nassau . $ 4,002,661,018 20 % $ 80,053,220
Town of Hempstead 338,663,999 51 17,271,863
Rockville Centre UFSD 12,997,133 896 11,645,431
East Rockaway UFSD 16,342,000 0.5 81,710
Baldwin UFSD 26,241,510 0.7 183,690
Hempstead UFSD 24,715,000 0.3 74,145
Oceanside UFSD ~ 24,609,828 1.7 418,367
Malverne UFSD ‘ 15,741,639 1.3 204 641
Net Overlapping Debt (1) 109,933,067
Net Direct Debt (2) & (3) 30,125,000 -
Net Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 140,058,067

(1) Calculated utilizing a ratio of assessed property in the Village subject to taxation by Governmenta! Unit
to the total assessed value of property of the Governmental Unit

(2) Excludes the amount available for debt service in other funds

(3) Represents governmental activities debt only

(4) Net Direct Debt excludes premium amount of $771,575

Source: NYS Comptroller's Special Report on Municipal Affairs Ending in 2012
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2006 2007 2,008 2009
Debt Limit $ 221,246,957 $ 247,432,832 $ 276,706,232 $ 304,886,730
Total Net Debt
Applicable to Limit 12,615,228 14,228,160 16,889,974 16,428,543
Legal Debt Margin $ 208,631,729 $ 233,204,672 $ 259,816,258 $ 288,458,187
Total Net Debt Applicable
to the Limit as a Percentage
of Debt Limit 5.70% 5.75% 6.10% 5.39%
Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2015
State
Special
Budget Assessed Equalization - Full
Year Year Valuation Ratio Valuation
2014 2015 $ 59,703,751 153 % $ 3,902,205,948
2013 2014 59,978,349 1.48 4,052,591,149
2012 2013 60,465,438 1.41 4,288,328,936
2011 2012 61,205,973 1.42 4,310,279,789
2010 2011 62,251,163 1.24 5,020,255,081

Total Five Year Full Valuation

Five Year Average Full Valuation of Taxable Real Property

Debt Limit - 7% of Five Year Average Full Valuation

Outstanding Village Debt - Serial Bonds

Less - Appropriations in 2015 Budget

Business Type Debt’

Net Indebtedness Subject to Debt Limit

Net Debt Contracting Margin

" "The Village of Rockville Centre does not file to gain exclusion of business type debt from the legal debt limit
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$ 21,573,660,903

4,314,732,181

302,031,253

43,725,000
102,000

2,929,000
19,465,000

21,433,000

$ 280,598,253




2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
323,898,616 $ . 337,691,646 $ 338,696,849 $ 332,579,725 $ 318,989,917  $ 302,031,253
15,293,319 17,050,998 18,879,500 16,679,500 16,527,000 21,433,000
308,605,297 $ 320,640,648 $ 319,817,348 § 315,900,225 $ 302,462,917 $ 280,598,253

4.72% 5.05% 5.57% 5.02% - 5.18% 7.10%
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Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
ynderstand the environment within which the Village's financial activities take place.

These schedules include:

Demographic Statistics



VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal A
Year Village Town County
Ended Personal Per Capita  Unemployment Unemployment Unemployment
May 31, Population (1) Income Income (1) Rate (2) Rate (2) Rate (2)
2006 24,568 1,000,875,752 $ 40,739 3.50 % 4.00 % 3.90 %
2007 24,568 1,000,875,752 .40,739 3.00 3.50 3.40
2008 24,568 1,000,875,752 40,739 4.10 4.70 4.50
2009 24,568" 1,000,875,752 40,739 6.30 7.10 6.90
2010 24,568 1,000,875,752 40,739 6.00 -7.10 _ 6.90
2011 24,568 1,000,875,752 40,739 5.30 | 6.70 6.50
2012 24,023 1,283,236,591 53,417 5.80 7.30 7.00
2013 24,023 1,283,236,591 53,417 5.90 6.10 5.80
2014 24,023 1,283,236,591 53,41 7 4.30 4.90 470
2015 24,023 1,283,236,591 53,417 -4.20 4.50 4.30
Sources:

2000 U.S. Census (2004-2011) and 2010 U.S. Census (2012-2014)

(2) New York State Department of Labor
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Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the Village's financial report relates to the services the Village provides and the
activities it performs. These schedules include:

Principal Employers

Full-Time Equivalent Village Government Employees by Function

Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program



VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

EMPLOYER

Mercy Hospital

RVC Union Free School District
Better Home Healthcare

Molloy College

Orlin & Cohen

Inc. Village of Rockville Cent-re
Nassau Inter—County Express
Diocese of Rockville Centre
Karp Volvo

Rockville Centre Nursing Home

U.S Post Office
TOTAL

EMPLOYER

Mercy Hospital

RVC Union Free School District
Molloy Coilege

Inc. Village of Rockville Centre
Nassau Inter-County Express

- Rockville Centre Nursing Home v
Diocese of Rockville Centre
U.S Post Office

Karp Volvo/SAAB and Buick
Rockville Residence Manor
Able Ford/Infinity

Rockville Centre Public Library

TOTAL

2015

PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL

EMPLOYEES EMPLOYMENT

954 8.28 %
840 7.29
545 473
502 436
365 3.17
218 1.89
158 1.37
127 1.10
112 0.97
96 0.83
48 0.42

- 3,965 34.41 %

2006

PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL

EMPLOYEES EMPLOYMENT

1,598 12.76 %

850 6.79
652 5.21
374 2.99
187 1.49
175 1.40
152 121
120 0.96
95 0.76
80 0.64

75 060
68 0.54

4,426 35.35 %

Sources: Each major employer and The Bureau of Labor Statistics

Note: Based upon employment of 12,526 in 2006 and 11,519 in 2015
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT VILLAGE GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION

- LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2006 2007 2008

Function:

General Government 37 35 38
Public Safety 67 65 A 68
Transportation | 20 18 18
Health | 1 1 1
Culture and Recreation 19 - 23 20
Home and Community Services 24 24 23
Total - 168 166 168

Source: Comptroller's Office
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2009 2010 2011 2012 . 2013 2014 2015
34 36 - 36 35 34 34 35

67 68 69 69 69 67 71

17 15 15 17 17 18 17

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

20 21 21 21 22 21 21

23 22 21 21 21 21 21

162 163 163 164 164 162 166
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Government Support:
Village Assessor :
Exemptions:
Veterans
Senior
Disabled
Ministerial
Firefighter

Village Attorney :
Notice of Claims filed

Village Comptroller:
1099's Issued
Purchase Orders issued
Claims paid

Village Court:
Tickets Resulting in Fines:
Parking
Traffic
Appearance
Housing

Village Clerk:
Birth Certificates
Death Certificates

~ Parking Permits Resident
Parking Permits Employees
Dog Licenses issued

Public Safety:
Police Department:

Physical arrests
Traffic Tickets
Parking Tickets
Burglaries
Alarms

Building Department:
Building Permits issued
Certificate of Occupancy issued

Certificate of Completion issued.

Planning/ Zoning Board:
Planning Board cases
Zoning Board cases

2006 2007 2008
985 955 927
121 122 116

5 6 6

1 2 1

91 91 98
18 18 14
149 163 167
1,817 1,849 1036
4,184 4,436 4605
35,432 40,512 39,236
2,830 2,950 2,764
102 123 97
150 145 222
2,839 2,759 2,806
6,098 5,999 5,497
3,692 3,819 3,853
1,693 1,756 1,408
215 229 208
354 N/A 306
5,055 5,401 4,839
47117 53,759 53,033
57 N/A 41
2,349 N/A 2,207
404 360 349
177 202 21
178 158 250
6 2 7
38 37 44
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
920 885 866 797 759 743 731
110 101 90 80 68 75 69

7 5 5 1 1 - -

1 1 1 2 2 2 2
101 113 111 108 104 109 103
17 18 31 36 28 46 35
177 172 224 218 248 221 N/A
1269 1,495 1,671 1,774 2,153 2,099 2,150
4446 4,891 5,030 5,037 4,734 4,803 4,645
35,682 30,442 32,254 30,739 34,495 22,968 23,654
2,330 1,964 1,813 1,744 2,485 1,505 1,775
95 74 149 217 140 97 98
282 404 430 380 489 400 463

2,235 2,355 2,207 2,175 1,992 © 2,061 2,038

4,549 4,382 4,104 4,685 5,258 4,361 4,858
3,395 3,255 3,249 3,168 3,120 3,086 3,134
1,850 1,491 1,889 1,661 1,360 1,234 1,258
194 188 102 NA N/A N/A N/A
302 219 270 300 247 320 366

4,318 2,750 2,840 2,528 2,662 2,866 4,473

47,265 40,189 43,007 38,238 34,495 22,968 23,654

48 82 60 40 39 16 13

1,916 1,999 2,142 2,067 1,894 1,918 1,922

273 264 373 288 553 908 953
74 69 68 121 97 129 133
703 668 249 667 497 906 803
2 3 5 6 11 3 8
7 16 27 42 13 38 61
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" VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM (Continued)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2006 2007 2008
Department of Public Works:
Total miles of roads resurfaced 2.34 2.39 2.87
Culture and Recreation:
Recreation: v
Adult programs 18 19 20
Children programs 26 30 32
Pre-school classes 29 31 49
Open gyms _ 2 2 2
Special events 23 23 25
Home and Community Services:
Fire Department:
Medical Emergencies 1,446 N/A 1,076
Auto Accidents . 188 N/A 106
Investigations 486 N/A 167
Senior Programs:
Membership Sandel Senior Center 618 624 . 598
Refuse: 7 A
Tons of Solid Waste 17,760 17,360 16,765
Tons of Bulky Waste 1,964 1,446 1,102
Total Tons of Solid and Bulky Waste 19,724 18,806 17,867
Sewer Department:
Catch Basins Cleaned : 82 - 90 85
Diffusion Wells Cleaned _ 6 5 4

Note: Refuse statistics are in tons.
Note: "N/A" indicates data not available.
Sources: Various Village departments
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2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
— 45 1.36 1.66 .60 62 1.60
20 20 20 20 20 20 20
58 58 58 58 58 58 63
61 61 61 61 61 61 64
3 3 3 3 3 3 3
31 31 31 31 31 31 31
1,675 1,595 1,747 © 1,679 1,714 1,674 1,899
183 194 174 204 149 150 144
276 657 322 319 215 187 219
568 350 ‘385 386 332 231 283
15,183 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
1,066 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
16,249 15,767 15,261 15,575 15,468 14,602 14,477
85 89 86 83 87 89 87
4 1 4 7 1 3

3
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VILLAGE OF ROCKVILLE CENTRE, NEW YORK

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Government Support:
Number of general government buildings

Public Safety:
Number of police stations
Number of fire stations
Patrol Sectors

Transportation:

" Number of street lights
Municipal parking fields
Off-street parking spaces

Culture and Recreation:
Number of community centers
Number of parks
Acres of parks

" Playgrounds
Baseball/softball diamonds
Outdoor tennis courts
Soccer fields
Basketball courts

Sources: Various Village departments
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2006 2007 2008
5 5 5

1 1 1

5 5 5

5 5 5

3 467 3475 3,478
31 31 31

3 421 3421 3386
3 3 3

12 12 12
229 229 229
3 3 3

8 8 8

5 5 5

10 10 10

9 9 9



2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
5 5 5 5 5 5 5

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

5 5 5 5 5 5 5

5 5 5 5 5 5 5
3,473 3476 3476 3500 3501 3513 3516
31 31 31 31 31 31 S 31
3,443 3443 3443 3441 3440 3440 3440
3 3 3 3 3 3 3

12 12 12 12 12 12 12
229 229 229 229 229 229 229

3 3 3 3 3 3 3

8 8 8 8 9 10 10

5 5 5 5 5 5 5

10 10 10 10 10 10 10

9 9 9 9 9 9 9

127



COMPLIANCE SECTION

e eV ey e VY e eV a VeV eV VeV a VeV eV e Ve Ve VeV Ve Wt Ve Ve W W e W W W N e N e N e W W e



Robert S. Abrams
(1926-2014)

I .KVA‘ R.S. ABRAMS & CO., LLP Marianne E. Van Duyne, CPA
‘ & ccouniants 5 Consultants for Quer 75 years Alexandria M. Battaglia, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT vON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
. STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
The Incorporated Village of Rockville Centre

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, fiduciary funds and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Rockville Centre, as
of and for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively

comprise the Village of Rockville Centre’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 30, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village of Rockville Centre’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Rockville Centre’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village of Rockville Centre’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses, Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village of Rockville Centre’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
~ compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

R Mbranes G xtmp

R.S. Abrams & Co., LLP
Islandia, NY
October 30, 2015
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